
 



Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 
 

 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA – JANUARY 24, 2024 |      

 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chair Lamar Thorpe 
a. Roll Call 

 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
While public comments are encouraged and taken very seriously, State law prevents the 
Board of Directors from discussing items that are not on the meeting agenda. If appropriate, 
staff will follow up on public comments. Please see Public Comment Guidelines on the last 
page of this agenda.  

 
 
4. CHAIR’S REPORT Chair Lamar Thorpe 
 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR (ACTION ITEM):  

(see attachment: tab #1)  
a. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of December 13, 2023  
b. Financial Report 
c. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report 

Requested Action: Approve items 5a, 5b, and 5c 
 
 
6. CEO’S REPORT Rashidi Barnes 
 
 
7. ACTION ITEMS and DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. ACTION ITEM: Title VI Program    
 (see attachment: tab #2) 

  Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #240124A, approving ECCTA’s 2024-2026 Title 
   VI Program and authorizing staff to submit the program to the FTA.  
 

 
 

 

 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 
 

 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA – JANUARY 24, 2024 |      

b. ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditors Report  
  (see attachment: tab #3) 

Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #240124B, accepting the Independent 
Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2023 

 
 
 
8. BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Under this item, Directors are limited to providing information, asking clarifying questions 
about matters not on the agenda, responding to public comment, referring matters to staff, 
or requesting a report be made at another meeting. 
 

 
 

9. ADJOURN 
Next Meeting: February 28, 2024, at 4:00 p.m., 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509. 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


 



 

TAB 1 
Agenda Item #5 

Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report and  
Marketing Activities Report  

 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

   



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
Antioch - Brentwood - Pittsburg - Oakley and Contra Costa County 

 
MINUTES 

 
December 13, 2023 

 
 
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) meeting was called to order in the 
ECCTA Board Room, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California by Chair Thorpe at 4:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL / CALL TO ORDER 
 
BOARD MEMBERS 

PRESENT:      Dionne Adams (Pittsburg)*; Joel Bryant (Brentwood); Diane Burgis (Contra 
Costa County); Merl Craft (Member-at-Large); Nancy Parent (Alternate 
Director, Contra Costa County); Shannon Shaw (Oakley); Anissa Williams 
(Oakley); Lamar Thorpe (Antioch/ Chair) 

     *arrived after roll 
 
ABSENT:  Tony Oerlemans (Brentwood); Shanelle Scales-Preston (Pittsburg); Monica 

Wilson (Antioch) 
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
  Toan Tran, Chief Operating Officer (COO)  
  Eli Flushman, General Counsel  
    Agustin Diaz, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
  Rosanna Dominguez, Executive Assistant 
  
    
   
OTHERS  
PRESENT:    Yevette McNeese, TransDev General Manager 
  Myeisha Williams, TransDev Assistant General Manager  
    Ben Trejo, TransDev Safety Manager 
       
  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chair Thorpe led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
No public comment  
 
 
CHAIR’S REPORT 
 
There was no Chair’s report.  
 



 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
On motion by Director Bryant, seconded by Director Burgis, ECCTA Board members adopted 
the Consent Calendar below, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
A. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of October 25, 2023 
B. Financial Report 
C. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Shaw, Williams, Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: Parent 
ABSENT: Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Wilson 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
A.  Operations Report 

 
Chief Executive Officer Rashidi Barnes reported that BART staff will continue to fund bus feeder 
through FY 2025. A stable form of funding will need to be found for post- FY2025.  To ensure 
that ECCTA is running a very efficient service, a third party will be performing a comprehensive 
operational analysis.  
 
Mr. Barnes reported on SB125 and MTC's position to appropriate these funds. Operation funding 
provided by SB125 has requirements for gaining this funding and these were reviewed.  
  
Mr. Barnes reported he has been selected to be on the statewide Transit Transformation Task 
Force, this task force helps establish policy recommendations and improve the transit experience 
for riders. 
 
Mr Barnes informed the board members of meetings he attended while traveling to the APTA 
Legislative conference, including a meeting with Congressman DeSaulnier’s office. He also informed 
the board of potential legislation that could consolidate the East Bay small operators. This body of 
small operators has met together to discuss this and is looking into bringing on a lobbyist to help give 
East Bay operators a seat at the table and an advocate in new legislation.  
 
Mr Barnes recognized operators Linda Thompson, Maybelline Walton, Luz Gonzalez, and Ronald 
Perry, in person for their million-mile accomplishment. 
 
 
ACTION ITEM AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
A. 2024 Board Calendar  
 
Chief Executive Officer Rashidi Barnes reported on the upcoming year's Board meetings and 
requested that ECCTA Board of Directors combine the November and December 2024 meetings to 
December 11, 2024.  
 
 



On motion by Director Craft, seconded by Director Adams, ECCTA Board members adopted 
the 2024 Board of Directors meeting calendar, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Parent, Shaw, Williams, Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Wilson 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 A closed session was held for Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (3) of 

subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (Two potential cases). 
 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Kim Gilbert Brown v. Tri Delta Transit et al. Contra Costa Superior 
Court Case No. C23-02465     

 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
After the closed session, the Board reconvened to open session to report actions taken during the 
closed session.  General Counsel Eli Flushman reported that Board members met in closed 
session to discuss the exposure to litigation on agenda item 8 for anticipated litigation, which 
there were two potential case, and there was nothing to report. 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENT 
 
The Board of Directors gave comment: 
Director Burgis  
Director Shaw 
Director Craft 
Director Bryant 
Director Williams 
Director Parent  
Chair Thorpe 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority adjourned at 4:30 p.m. until January 24, 
2024, at 4:00 p.m. in the ECCTA Administrative Facility, 801 Wilbur Ave Antioch, California.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rosanna Dominguez 
 
Executive Assistant  
 



TR
I D

EL
TA

 T
R

AN
SI

T
In

co
m

e 
St

at
em

en
t -

  C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
As

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
3

(u
na

ud
ite

d)

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
EC

CT
A

FR
DR

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
EC

CT
A

FR
DR

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
O

PE
RA

TI
NG

 R
EV

EN
UE

S
Pa

ss
en

ge
r F

ar
es

83
4,

20
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

57
5,

60
1

$ 
   

   
  

25
8,

60
3

$ 
   

   
  

90
2,

35
8

$ 
   

   
  

49
0,

44
7

$ 
   

   
  

41
1,

91
1

$ 
   

   
  

(6
8,

15
4)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

85
,1

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

53
,3

08
)

$ 
   

   
 

1,
81

3,
29

8
$ 

   
  

98
4,

63
9

$ 
   

   
  

82
8,

65
9

$ 
   

   
  

46
%

58
%

31
%

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e
30

5,
96

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
21

0,
96

6
$ 

   
   

  
25

2,
11

0
$ 

   
   

  
94

,9
98

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

7,
11

2
$ 

   
   

  
53

,8
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,8

54
$ 

   
   

   
 

49
0,

74
1

$ 
   

   
  

19
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

30
0,

74
1

$ 
   

   
  

62
%

50
%

70
%

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s:

1,
14

0,
17

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

67
0,

60
1

$ 
   

   
  

46
9,

56
9

$ 
   

   
  

1,
15

4,
46

8
$ 

   
  

58
5,

44
5

$ 
   

   
  

56
9,

02
3

$ 
   

   
  

(1
4,

29
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

85
,1

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(9

9,
45

4)
$ 

   
   

   
2,

30
4,

03
9

$ 
   

  
1,

17
4,

63
9

$ 
   

  
1,

12
9,

40
0

$ 
   

  
49

%
57

%
42

%

NO
N-

O
PE

RA
TI

NG
 R

EV
EN

UE
S

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
ds

1,
61

4,
37

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

61
4,

37
5

$ 
   

  
85

6,
05

3
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

85
6,

05
3

$ 
   

   
  

75
8,

32
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

8,
32

2
$ 

   
   

  
1,

71
2,

10
9

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
71

2,
10

9
$ 

   
  

94
%

94
%

St
at

e 
Fu

nd
s

11
,0

74
,9

61
$ 

   
   

  
9,

31
9,

26
4

$ 
   

  
1,

75
5,

69
7

$ 
   

  
13

,1
53

,6
46

$ 
   

 
10

,4
98

,2
58

$ 
   

 
2,

65
5,

38
8

$ 
   

  
(2

,0
78

,6
85

)
$ 

   
   

  
(1

,1
78

,9
94

)
$ 

   
   

  
(8

99
,6

91
)

$ 
   

   
 

25
,9

68
,6

65
$ 

   
 

20
,5

89
,3

62
$ 

   
 

5,
37

9,
30

3
$ 

   
  

43
%

45
%

33
%

Lo
ca

l F
un

ds
1,

33
7,

42
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
50

2,
96

2
$ 

   
   

  
83

4,
46

7
$ 

   
   

  
1,

37
7,

64
2

$ 
   

  
59

7,
79

8
$ 

   
   

  
77

9,
84

4
$ 

   
   

  
(4

0,
21

3)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(9

4,
83

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
54

,6
23

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

75
5,

28
7

$ 
   

  
1,

19
5,

59
6

$ 
   

  
1,

55
9,

69
1

$ 
   

  
49

%
42

%
54

%
In

te
r-O

pe
ra

to
r A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

26
6,

04
2

$ 
   

  
1,

26
6,

04
2

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,2

66
,0

42
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,2

66
,0

42
)

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

53
2,

08
5

$ 
   

  
2,

53
2,

08
5

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

n/
a

In
te

re
st

 &
 O

th
er

 M
is

c 
In

co
m

e
49

,9
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

11
,7

97
$ 

   
   

   
 

38
,1

60
$ 

   
   

   
 

29
,9

96
$ 

   
   

   
 

24
,9

98
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
99

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

19
,9

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

3,
20

1)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

,1
62

$ 
   

   
   

 
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
83

%
24

%
38

2%
To

ta
l N

on
-o

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
ev

en
ue

s:
14

,0
76

,7
22

$ 
   

   
  

9,
83

4,
02

3
$ 

   
  

4,
24

2,
69

9
$ 

   
  

16
,6

83
,3

79
$ 

   
 

12
,3

87
,0

96
$ 

   
 

4,
29

6,
28

3
$ 

   
  

(2
,6

06
,6

57
)

$ 
   

   
  

(2
,5

53
,0

73
)

$ 
   

   
  

(5
3,

58
4)

$ 
   

   
   

33
,0

28
,1

46
$ 

   
 

24
,3

67
,0

43
$ 

   
 

8,
66

1,
10

3
$ 

   
  

43
%

40
%

49
%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s:
15

,2
16

,8
92

$ 
   

   
  

10
,5

04
,6

24
$ 

   
 

4,
71

2,
26

8
$ 

   
  

17
,8

37
,8

47
$ 

   
 

12
,9

72
,5

41
$ 

   
 

4,
86

5,
30

6
$ 

   
  

(2
,6

20
,9

55
)

$ 
   

   
  

(2
,4

67
,9

17
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
53

,0
38

)
$ 

   
   

 
35

,3
32

,1
85

$ 
   

 
25

,5
41

,6
82

$ 
   

 
9,

79
0,

50
3

$ 
   

  

O
PE

RA
TI

NG
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

10
,3

63
,2

70
$ 

   
   

  
6,

66
1,

29
4

$ 
   

  
3,

70
1,

97
6

$ 
   

  
10

,3
24

,9
38

$ 
   

 
6,

70
1,

24
6

$ 
   

  
3,

62
3,

69
2

$ 
   

  
(3

8,
33

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
39

,9
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(7
8,

28
4)

$ 
   

   
   

20
,4

59
,2

35
$ 

   
 

13
,1

45
,9

45
$ 

   
 

7,
31

3,
29

0
$ 

   
  

51
%

51
%

51
%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
s

2,
37

3,
71

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
86

8,
86

2
$ 

   
  

50
4,

85
4

$ 
   

   
  

2,
71

8,
05

8
$ 

   
  

2,
20

2,
76

7
$ 

   
  

51
5,

29
1

$ 
   

   
  

34
4,

34
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
33

3,
90

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
,4

37
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
33

8,
84

4
$ 

   
  

4,
29

6,
98

1
$ 

   
  

1,
04

1,
86

3
$ 

   
  

44
%

43
%

48
%

Sa
la

rie
s 

& 
Be

ne
fit

s
2,

79
7,

98
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

41
5,

05
7

$ 
   

  
38

2,
92

4
$ 

   
   

  
3,

19
3,

16
6

$ 
   

  
2,

80
9,

99
2

$ 
   

  
38

3,
17

4
$ 

   
   

  
39

5,
18

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

39
4,

93
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

38
6,

33
2

$ 
   

  
5,

61
9,

98
0

$ 
   

  
76

6,
35

2
$ 

   
   

  
44

%
43

%
50

%
Se

rv
ic

es
68

4,
49

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
50

1,
01

1
$ 

   
   

  
18

3,
48

2
$ 

   
   

  
63

3,
86

3
$ 

   
   

  
46

1,
59

6
$ 

   
   

  
17

2,
26

7
$ 

   
   

  
(5

0,
63

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(3

9,
41

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

1,
21

5)
$ 

   
   

   
1,

23
0,

81
8

$ 
   

  
89

9,
35

0
$ 

   
   

  
33

1,
46

8
$ 

   
   

  
56

%
56

%
55

%
O

th
er

18
4,

52
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
9,

56
8

$ 
   

   
  

34
,9

54
$ 

   
   

   
 

24
0,

20
9

$ 
   

   
  

20
4,

93
3

$ 
   

   
  

35
,2

76
$ 

   
   

   
 

55
,6

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
55

,3
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

32
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

45
9,

75
3

$ 
   

   
  

39
6,

14
5

$ 
   

   
  

63
,6

08
$ 

   
   

   
 

40
%

38
%

55
%

C
as

ua
lty

 a
nd

 li
ab

ilit
y 

in
su

ra
nc

e
75

9,
90

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
62

5,
55

3
$ 

   
   

  
13

4,
35

4
$ 

   
   

  
57

7,
49

4
$ 

   
   

  
46

3,
54

8
$ 

   
   

  
11

3,
94

6
$ 

   
   

  
(1

82
,4

13
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

62
,0

05
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(2

0,
40

8)
$ 

   
   

   
1,

15
4,

99
1

$ 
   

  
92

7,
09

7
$ 

   
   

  
22

7,
89

4
$ 

   
   

  
66

%
67

%
59

%
U

til
iti

es
15

7,
47

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

1,
47

3
$ 

   
   

  
25

,9
98

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

0,
11

5
$ 

   
   

  
12

0,
74

4
$ 

   
   

  
19

,3
71

$ 
   

   
   

 
(1

7,
35

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

0,
72

9)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(6

,6
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
2,

33
4

$ 
   

   
  

24
0,

78
7

$ 
   

   
  

41
,5

47
$ 

   
   

   
 

56
%

55
%

63
%

Ta
xe

s
11

,5
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

8,
59

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
95

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
,0

04
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
71

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
28

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
,5

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(8
80

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
70

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
19

,8
78

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

,3
97

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

48
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
58

%
56

%
66

%
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

:
17

,3
32

,9
14

$ 
   

   
  

12
,3

61
,4

13
$ 

   
 

4,
97

1,
50

1
$ 

   
  

17
,8

37
,8

47
$ 

   
 

12
,9

72
,5

41
$ 

   
 

4,
86

5,
30

6
$ 

   
  

50
4,

93
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
61

1,
12

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
06

,1
95

)
$ 

   
   

 
35

,3
32

,1
85

$ 
   

 
25

,5
41

,6
82

$ 
   

 
9,

79
0,

50
3

$ 
   

  
49

%
48

%
51

%

EX
CE

SS
 R

EV
/(E

XP
)

(2
,1

16
,0

22
)

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,8

56
,7

89
)

$ 
   

 
(2

59
,2

33
)

$ 
   

   
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

11
6,

02
2

$ 
   

   
   

1,
85

6,
78

9
$ 

   
   

   
25

9,
23

3
$ 

   
   

  
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 #
5b

E
as

te
rn

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

A
ut

ho
rit

y
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

24
, 2

02
4

YT
D

 %
 o

f  
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
Bu

dg
et

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
YT

D 
Bu

dg
et

YT
D 

Va
ria

nc
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

vo
ra

bl
e/

(u
nf

av
or

ab
le

)
FY

24
 F

ul
l Y

ea
r B

ud
ge

t 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

 
Agenda Item: Marketing/Communications Activities – Agenda Item #5c 

 
Lead Staff: Leeann Loroño, Manager of Customer Service and 

Marketing 
 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Tri Delta Transit strives to provide top notch service to our customers and the community, as 
well as communicate the pivotal role Tri Delta Transit plays.  Here are some projects Marketing 
has been working on. 
 
 

  

January Marketing Campaign  
 
This month’s Monthly Grapevine ad campaign 
highlighted the rollout of Clipper START 50% discount 
by all Bay Area transit agencies.   
 
Graphics were also placed inside the bus, brochures in 
the lobby and bus graphics will be applied to encourage 
participation in this income qualified program.  
 

 

   

January Notifications to the Public 
Notifications are provided to the public via the buses, 
blue box signs, flyers, social media, website rider news, 
app notifications and more. Here is what was sent this 
month.  
1. January 14, 2024 schedule change  

 

   TRI DELTA TRANSIT 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

   2. Weekend/Holiday Schedule for Martin Luther King 
Jr. holiday 

 

New Schedules 
 
Tri Delta Transit changed our schedule to better match 
with BART’s schedule change on January 15th.  A shining 
example of regional transit coordination.  
 
Schedule changes include:  
* Timetable changes.  
* Inclusion of Means Base Fare and Mobility on 
Demand program information for paratransit 
passengers.  
* Advertising for transit programs such as Clipper 
START, Summer Youth Pass, Pass2Class and more, so 
that riders can look into these great programs and 
participate.  

 

 

Human Trafficking Awareness 
Month 
 
Each year Tri Delta Transit raises awareness about 
human trafficking.  The national and local phone 
numbers appear on buses, the lobby TV, and in social 
media to provide service to the public. The subject is 
also covered in our December in-service to operators 
and staff.   
 

Ongoing Projects:   
 Transit Takes You Places 

 
Tri Delta Transit was your connection to holiday 
happenings like this one.  Riders were encouraged to 
take public transportation to get to and from their 
celebrations safely.    
 
Tri Delta Transit takes you to most major points of 
interest in eastern Contra Costa County.   
 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

       

If you have an event that a Tri Delta Transit route goes 
near or to, send it to comments@eccta.org, and we will 
let riders know.   

 
 

 
 

Website Reimagined 
 
Marketing has currently completed the new page 
template review and the navigation review.  Our 
contractor, Planetaria, is now creating the color 
look and feel based on the PMS color spectrum 
provided by Marketing.   
 
The project is moving forward steadily and is on 
time.    

  

mailto:comments@eccta.org


Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA ANALYTICS 
Following please find a brief summary of metrics for the Tri Delta Transit social media accounts.   
 
MAIN ACCOUNTS MONTHS   
Followers SEPTEMBER 

2023 
OCTOBER 2023 DECEMBER 

2023 
Facebook 1.3k  1.3k 1.3k 
Instagram 985 987 989 
X (Twitter)  1,032 1,038 1,042 
LinkedIn  406 414 504 

 
ALERT ACCOUNTS MONTHS   
Followers SEPTEMBER 

2023 
OCTOBER 2023 DECEMBER 

2023 
Facebook 40 42 46 
Instagram 79 79 80 
X (Twitter)   12 13 15 

*Instagram back  
 
X (TWITTER) MONTHS   
 SEPTEMBER 

2023 
OCTOBER 2023 DECEMBER 

2023 
Impressions 10.9k 4,464 4,528 
Engagement 2 new followers 7 new followers Not shown 
Retweets N/A 9 12 
Likes - New N/A 31 15 

 
Please let us know if you have any questions or need further information about any of these 
materials. 



 

TAB 2 
Agenda Item #7a 

ACTION ITEM: Title VI Program 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

   



Agenda Item #7a 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

Agenda Item: 2024-2026 Title VI Program- Agenda Item #7a 

Lead Staff: Tania Babcock, Compliance Manager 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 
Background  
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s (ECCTA’s) Title VI program provides policy, procedure, 
and data analysis to comply with guidelines issued by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to 
implement Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and its 
amendments require that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color or 
national origin, be excluded from, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination, 
under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.  
 
Discussion 
As an agency receiving federal financial assistance, the FTA requires ECCTA to update and 
submit a Title VI Program every three years, in accordance with the criteria outlined in the FTA’s 
Circular 4702.1B, to show that we comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. The 
previous Title VI Program was approved by the ECCTA Board of Directors on January 27, 2021. 
 
Updates to the 2024-2026 Title VI Program include: 

• Revised Title VI complaint procedures to clarify process. 
• Signature on Title VI complaint form was made optional and no longer required, which 

allows staff to better assist customers filing a Title VI complaint over the phone. 
• Included Title VI complaints received since the previous Title VI Program submission to the 

FTA in 2021. 
• Documented public participation outreach activities since the previous Title VI Program 

submission to the FTA in 2021. 



Agenda Item #7a 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

• Included service and fare equity analyses conducted since the previous Title VI Program 
submission to the FTA in 2021. 

• Conducted the required analysis in the Language Assistance Plan to determine the 
specific language services that are appropriate to provide to persons within ECCTA’s 
service area.  Vietnamese was added as a safe harbor language. 

• Monitored ECCTA’s performance relative to system-wide service standards and policies. 
 
Financial Impact 
None 
 
Requested Action 
Adopt Resolution #240124A, approving ECCTA’s 2024-2026 Title VI Program and authorizing staff 
to submit the program to the FTA. 
 
Attached: 

1. ECCTA 2024-2026 Title VI Program 
 
 



 

    RESOLUTION #240124A 
2024-2026 Title VI Program 

Resolution #240124A approves ECCTA’s 2024-2026 Title VI Program and authorizes staff 
to submit the program to the FTA. 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requires ECCTA to conform to Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, its amendments, and related statutes and Executive Orders, 
including Environmental Justice and Limited English Proficiency; and 

WHEREAS, ECCTA is required to submit a Title VI program to the FTA every three years in 
accordance to, and in compliance with, FTA Circular 4702.1B; and 

WHEREAS, ECCTA is required to monitor its service as part of the Title VI program at a 
minimum of every three years; and 

WHEREAS, the monitoring results are included in the Title VI program; 

WHEREAS, ECCTA’s last Title VI program was submitted to the FTA in 2021; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra 
Costa Transit Authority to adopt Resolution #240124A approving ECCTA’s 2024-2026 Title VI 
Program and authorizing staff to submit the program to the FTA. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 24th day of January, 2024, by the following votes: 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

 _____________________________                                    ____________________________________ 
       Lamar Thorpe, Chair                                  Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

AYES: ______ 
NOES: ______ 
ABSENT: ______ 
ABSTENTIONS: ______ 



Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

2024-2026 

Title VI Program 

Updated December 2023 

Contact Information:  
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(ECCTA)- Recipient ID 5617  
Tania Babcock 
Compliance Manager 
(925) 754-6622
civilrights@eccta.org

7a Attachment 1



2 

Table of Contents  

 
Program Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Agency Information ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Title VI Notice to the Public .......................................................................................................................... 6 

Título VI Aviso al Publico ............................................................................................................................... 7 

List of Title VI Notice Placement ............................................................................................................... 8 

Title VI Complaint Procedures and Form .................................................................................................... 11 

Título VI Procedimiento de Quejas y Formulario ........................................................................................ 16 

Complaint Procedures................................................................................................................................. 21 

List of Transit-Related Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits ................................................... 22 

Public Participation Plan ............................................................................................................................. 24 

Language Assistance Plan ........................................................................................................................... 36 

Limited English Proficiency map- All LEP languages ............................................................................... 38 

Limited English Proficiency map- Spanish language ............................................................................... 38 

Membership of Non-Elected Boards and Committees ............................................................................... 46 

Monitoring of Subrecipients for Title VI Compliance ................................................................................. 47 

Facility Equity Analysis ................................................................................................................................ 48 

System-wide Service Standards and Policies .............................................................................................. 49 

Monitoring Program Results ....................................................................................................................... 51 

Major Service Change Policy ....................................................................................................................... 60 

Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy .............................................................................. 61 

Service and Fare Equity Analyses ................................................................................................................ 63 

Demographic and Service Profile Maps ...................................................................................................... 65 

Map 1: Base Map .................................................................................................................................... 65 

Map 2: Minority Population .................................................................................................................... 66 

Map 3: Low-Income Population .............................................................................................................. 67 

Demographics and Travel Patterns of ECCTA Passengers .......................................................................... 68 

Appendix A- Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign Service and Fare Equity Analysis .................................. 70 

Appendix B- COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes Service Equity Analysis ........................................... 102 

Appendix C- Paratransit Mobile Fare Payment Type Elimination-Fare Equity Analysis ........................... 125 

Appendix D- Board Approval of Service Standards and Policies ............................................................... 148 

Appendix E- Board Approval of Service Standards ................................................................................... 158 

7a Attachment 1



3 

Appendix F- Board Approval of Major Service Change Policy/Disparate Impact and Disproportionate 

Burden Policy ............................................................................................................................................ 169 

Appendix G- On-Board Passenger Survey ................................................................................................. 176 

Appendix H- Board Approval of Title VI Program ..................................................................................... 237 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



4 

Program Introduction 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s (ECCTA’s) Title VI program provides policy, procedure, and data 

analysis to comply with guidelines issued by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the United 

States Department of Transportation (USDOT) to implement Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act. The 

intent of Title VI is to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination under any 

program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

Since 1972, the FTA has required applicants for, and recipients of, Federal assistance to provide 

assessments of compliance as part of the grant approval process. The FTA has the responsibility to 

ensure that federally supported transit services are distributed in a manner consistent with Title VI, 

including Environmental Justice and access for individuals who have Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 

This program conforms to the FTA Title VI Circular 4702.1B, effective October 2012. 

As a direct recipient of Federal financial assistance, ECCTA is required to update and submit its Title VI 
Program every three years to the FTA. The 2024 Title VI plan is an update of the previous Title VI plan. 
 
ECCTA’s Title VI Program contains information on the following topics, as per Appendix A of Circular 

4702.1B: 

General Requirements (All transit providers) 

• Title VI Notice to the Public, including a list of locations where the notice is posted 

• Title VI Complaint Procedures and Form 

• List of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 

• Public Participation Plan, as well as outreach efforts made since the last Title VI Program 

submission 

• Language Assistance Plan 

• Membership of Non-Elected Boards and Committees  

• Monitoring of Subrecipients for Title VI Compliance 

• Facility Equity Analysis 

• Title VI Program Board Resolution 

Additional Requirements (transit providers with 50 or more fixed route vehicles) 

• Service Standards and Policies 

• Monitoring Program Results 

• Public Engagement for Major Service Change Policy and Disparate Impact/Disproportionate 

Burden Policy 

• Service or Fare Equity Analyses 

• Demographic and Service Profile Maps 

• Demographic Ridership and Travel Patterns 

  

7a Attachment 1



5 

Agency Information 
 
ECCTA was formed in 1976 as a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) consisting of the cities of Antioch, 

Brentwood, Pittsburg and the county of Contra Costa. Oakley incorporated as a city in 1999 and joined 

the JPA in 2000. ECCTA is governed by an eleven-member board of directors composed of two 

appointed by each of the mayors of Antioch, Brentwood, Oakley, and Pittsburg, two appointed by the 

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, and one member at large. ECCTA operates fixed-route and 

paratransit service under the name "Tri Delta Transit" and contracts with a private company, Transdev, 

for the operation of the buses. 

 
ECCTA provides nearly 2 million trips each year to a population of approximately 315,000 residents in 

the 225 square miles of Eastern Contra Costa County. Tri Delta Transit operates 16 local bus routes 

weekdays, 6 local bus routes on weekends and holidays, on-demand shared-ride shuttle service, and 

door-to-door bus service for senior citizens and people with disabilities. 

 

 
 
ECCTA Weekday System Map 
 

 

ECCTA Weekend/Holiday System Map 

7a Attachment 1



6 

 

Title VI Notice to the Public 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) operates its programs and services without regard to 

race, color, or national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

If you believe you have been discriminated against on the basis of race, color, or national origin by 

ECCTA you may a file a Title VI complaint. For more information on ECCTA’s Title VI program and the 

procedures to file a complaint, visit www.TriDeltaTransit.com/title_VI.aspx or contact: 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Compliance Manager 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

(925) 754-6622 

(925) 757-2530 (fax) 

CivilRights@eccta.org 

 

A complaint may be filed directly with the Federal Transit Administration, at Office of Civil Rights, 

Attention: Complaint Team, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, Washington, DC 

20590. 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

Si necesita información en Español, llame al 1- 925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

  

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/title_VI.aspx
mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


7 

Título VI Aviso al Publico 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) opera sus programas y servicios sin importar la raza,  el 

color, ni tampoco el origen de su nacionalidad  de acuerdo con el Título VI de la ley de derechos civiles 

de 1964. 

Si usted cree que ha sido discriminado debido a su raza, color, ó por el origen de su nacionalidad por 

ECCTA usted puede entablar una queja según el Título V. Para más información acerca del programa del 

Título VI de ECCTA y el proceso para entablar una queja, visite www.TriDeltaTransit.com/title_VI.aspx ó 

también puede ponerse en contacto:  

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
                             El Gerente de Quejas (Compliance Manager) 

801 Wilbur Avenue 
Antioch, CA 94509 

(925) 754-6622 
(925) 757-2530 (fax) 

CivilRights@eccta.org 
 

Puede entablar una queja directamente con el departamento de Federal Transit Administracion 

(Administración Federal de Tránsito), en la oficina de Civil Rights (Derechos Civiles), Atención:   

Complaint Team, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, Washington, DC 20590. 

 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

 

  

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/title
mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


8 

List of Title VI Notice Placement 

ECCTA currently has its Title VI Notice placed at the following locations: 

• In the lobby of the main office, located at 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

• On each fixed route and paratransit bus 

• On ECCTA’s website at www.trideltatransit.com/title_VI.aspx 

 

 

Title VI Notice placed in the lobby of the main office 

 

 

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/title_VI.aspx


9 

 

Title VI Notice on board buses 

 

7a Attachment 1



10 

 

Title VI Notice on website at www.TriDeltaTransit.com/title_VI.aspx 

  

7a Attachment 1



11 

Title VI Complaint Procedures and Form 
 

This document outlines the Title VI complaint procedures for any person who believes they have been 

discriminated against on the basis of race, color, or national origin by ECCTA.  It does not deny the 

complainant the right to file formal complaints with the California Department of Transportation, the 

Secretary of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 

(EEOC), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit Administration (FTA), or to seek private 

counsel for complaints alleging discrimination, intimidation, or retaliation of any kind that is prohibited 

by law. 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds 

of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. 

1. Filing Complaint  

Any person who believes that they have been subjected to discrimination based on race, color, or 

national origin by ECCTA may file a Title VI complaint. Federal and State law requires complaints be 

filed within one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days of the last alleged incident. 

a. Complainants have the right to complain directly to the appropriate federal agency, 

however they must do so within one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days of the last 

alleged incident.  A person may file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit 

Administration: 

Federal Transit Administration Office of Civil Rights 

 Attention: Complaint Team, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR 

1200 New Jersey Avenue SE 

 Washington, DC 20590 

 

b. To file a written complaint with ECCTA, the complainant may download the Title VI 

Complaint Form from ECCTA’s website (www.TriDeltaTransit.com) or request the Title VI 

Complaint Form from ECCTA’s Customer Service Department or Compliance Manager by 

calling 1-925-754-6622. Complaints may also be filed with ECCTA’s Customer Service 

Department over the phone at 1-925-754-6622 or in person at ECCTA’s Administration 

Office at 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA. 

 

c. The complainant may also submit a written statement that contains all of the 

information identified in Section c (1) through (7). 

 

The complaint will include the following information:  

1. Name, address, and telephone number of the complainant. 

2. The basis of the complaint i.e., race, color, or national origin. 

3. The date or dates on which the alleged discriminatory event or events occurred. 

4. The nature of the incident that led the complainant to feel discrimination was a 

factor. 

7a Attachment 1



12 

5. Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of persons who may have 

knowledge of the event. 

6. Other agencies or courts where complaint may have been filed and a contact 

name. 

7. Complainant's signature (optional) and date. 

If the complainant is unable to write a complaint, ECCTA staff will assist the complainant. If 

requested by complainant, ECCTA staff will provide a language or sign interpreter. 

The complaint may be sent or faxed to the following address: 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Compliance Manager 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

(925) 754-6622 

(925) 757-2530 (fax) 

Or emailed to CivilRights@eccta.org 

2. Reviewing Complaint 

a. Upon receipt of a potential Title VI complaint, the complaint is investigated, then the 

Compliance Manager or designee will review the information to determine if it is 

covered under Title VI. 

 

3. Following Up on Complaint 

a. Upon review of the complaint, the Compliance Manager or designee will discuss findings 

and/or recommendations for resolution with ECCTA management. 

 

b. The Compliance Manager or designee will send a letter to the complainant stating the 

outcome of the investigation, the right to appeal, and appeal process no later than sixty 

(60) calendar days after the date ECCTA received the complaint.  If more time is 

required, the complainant will be notified of the estimated time-frame for completing 

the review. 

 

4. Submitting Appeal 

a. A complainant can appeal the decision by submitting an appeal in writing stating the 

reason(s) for the appeal.  The written appeal is to be submitted to: 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Chief Executive Officer 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

 

ECCTA’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), or designee, shall promptly consider the appeal.  

Consideration of the appeal will be based on the written appeal and accompanying 

documentation and with the discretion of the CEO or designee, may include a meeting 

with the appealing party.  ECCTA’s CEO or designee shall within a reasonable time 

7a Attachment 1

mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


13 

frame, but not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days from receipt of the appeal by ECCTA, 

issue a written decision to the appealing party.  The decision by the CEO or designee 

shall constitute the final administrative determination by ECCTA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

Si necesita información en Español, llame al 1- 925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



14 

 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Title VI Complaint Form 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1946 states, “No person in the United States shall, on the ground of 
race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.” 

Please provide the following information in order to process your complaint. Assistance is available upon 
request. Complete this form and mail or deliver to: 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Compliance Manager 
801 Wilbur Avenue 
Antioch, CA 94509 

Alternatively, it can be faxed to 1-925-757-2530 or emailed to CivilRights@eccta.org. 

Complainant’s Name: _______________________________________________________  
Address:  _________________________________________________________________  
City:  ______________________________ State: _______ Zip Code: ________________  
Telephone Number (Home): __________________  (Business):  _____________________  

Person discriminated against (if other than complainant): 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
Address:  _________________________________________________________________  
City:  ______________________________ State: _______ Zip Code: ________________  

Which of the following best describes the reason you believe the discrimination took place?  
(Check all that apply): 
  ____ Race  
  ____ Color 
  ____ National Origin  
 
What date did the alleged discrimination take place?  _____________________________  

Describe the alleged discrimination in as much detail as possible. Explain what happened and why you 
believe you were discriminated against.  Describe all persons who were involved.  Include the name 
and contact information of the person(s) who discriminated against you (if known) as well as names 
and contact information of any witnesses.  Please include the route number and direction of travel, the 
time the incident occurred, and the bus number, if applicable.  For additional space, attach additional 
sheets of paper or use the back of this form. 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

7a Attachment 1

mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


15 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
Did you file this complaint with another federal, state, or local agency; or with a federal or state court? 
(Check appropriate space) ______ Yes  ______ No 

If the answer is yes, check each agency that your complaint was filed with: 

Federal Agency ___________________ Federal Court ______________ State Agency ______________  

State Court ______________________ Local Agency ______________ Other ____________________  

Provide the contact person information for the agency (or agencies) you filed the complaint with: 

Name: ______________________________________________________________________________  

Address:  ____________________________________________________________________________  

City: ________________________________________ State: ______ Zip Code:  ____________________  

Telephone Number:___________________________ 

Date Filed: ___________________________________  

Sign the complaint in the space below. Attach any documents you believe support your complaint. 

 ______________________________________   ______________________  

 (Signature-optional) (Date) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

Si necesita información en Español, llame al 1- 925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



16 

Título VI Procedimiento de Quejas y Formulario 
 

Este documento describe el procedimiento de queja Título VI para cualquier persona que cree ser 

víctima de discriminación personal en base a su raza, color, origen de nacionalidad por parte de ECCTA. 

No niega el derecho al demandante de entablar una queja formal con las siguientes dependencias del 

govierno: 

California Department of Transportation (Departamento de Transporte de California), Secretary of the 

U.S. Department of Transportation (Secretaría del Departamento de Transporte de los E.U.), Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission (Comisión de Oportunidad de Empleo Equitativo), Federal 

Highway Administration (Administración Federal de Carreteras), Federal Transit Administration 

(Adminsitración Federal de Tránsito),  ó buscar asesoramiento privado para quejas por motivo de 

discriminación, intimidación, ó por  cualquier tipo de represalia prohibida por la ley.  

El Título VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles de 1964 requiere que ninguna persona en los Estados Unidos no 

sea discriminada por motivos de raza, color, ni origen de nacionalidad, sea excluida de la participación 

en, le sean negados beneficios de, ó ser sujeto a descriminación en cualquier programa ó actividad que 

reciba asistencia financiera federal.  

1. Presentar Denuncia 
Cualquier persona que cree haber sido sujeta a descriminación por motivos de raza, color, ni origen 
de nacionalidad, puede entablar una demanda por escrito con ECCTA. La ley Federal y Estatal 
require que las quejas sean entabladas dentro de ciento ochenta (180) dias hábiles desde el último 
incidente. 
 

a.  Los demandantes tienen el derecho de quejarse directamente con la agencia federal 
apropriada, sinembargo deberán hacerlo dentro de ciento ochenta (180) dias hábiles 
subsecuentes al último incidente. La persona puede entablar su queja directamente con el 
Administración Federal de Transporte (Federal Transit Administration): 
Federal Transit Administration Office of Civil Rights 
Attention: Complaint Team, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR 
1200 New Jersey Avenue SE 
Washington, DC 20590 
 

b. Para entablar una queja por escrito con ECCTA, el demandante puede descargar el 
formulario del Title VI Complaint Form (Formulario de Quejas Título VI) de la página de 
internet de ECCTA (www.TriDeltaTransit.com) también puede solicitar el formulario del 
Departamento de Servicio al Cliente, ó también llamando al Compliance Manager 1-925-
754-6622. El demandante también puede enviar una declaración por escrito que contenga 
toda la información identificada en la Sección c, del inciso (1-7). 

 

c.  La queda deberá incluir la siguiene información: 
 
1.  Nombre, dirección, y número telefónico del demandante. 
 
2.  La razón en la cual se basa la queja, por ejemplo: raza, color, ó origen de nacionalida. 
 
3.  La fecha o fechas en las cuales ocurrió dicho evento ó eventos de discriminación. 
 

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/


17 

4.  El motivo del incidente por el cual llevó al demandante a creer que la descriminación fué 
      el factor de la queja.  
 
5.  Nombres, direcciones, y numerous teléfonicos de personas que podrían tener 

conocimiento del evento. 

 

6.  Otras agencias ó tribunales donde se haya entablado la queja y el nombre del contacto. 

7.  La firma del demandante (opcional) y la fecha. 

 Si al demandante no le es posible presentar la queja por escrito, el personal de ECCTA le 

 proveerá un intérprete del idioma, asi como también un intérprete de lenguaje por señas. 

                   La queja puede ser enviada o mandarla por fax a la siguiene dirección: 
                   Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
                   El Gerente de Quejas (Compliance Manager) 
                   801 Wilbur Avenue 
                   Antioch, CA 94509 
                   (925) 754-6622 
                   (925) 757-2530 (fax) 
 
                   Puede enviarla a: CivilRights@eccta.org 
 
 

2. Revisando la Denuncia 
a. Al recibir una posible denuncia de Título VI, se investiga la denuncia, y el Gerente de 

Quejas o su designado revisará la denuncia para determinar si está amparada bajo el 

Título VI.  

 
3. Seguimiento de la Denuncia 

a. Después de revisar la demanda, el Gerente de Quejas o su designado expondrá lo que 

haya encontrado y/o sus recomendaciones para una resolución con la administración de 

ECCTA. 

 

b. El Gerente de Quejas o su designado enviará una carta al denunciante exponiendo los 

resultados de la investigación, su derecho a la apelación, y el proceso de apelación en un 

término no mayor de los 60 (sesenta) dias hábiles después de la fecha en que ECTA 

recibió la demanda. De ser necesario más tiempo, el demandante será notificado acerca 

de una fecha aproximada para terminar dicha investigación.   

 

 

4. Remitiendo la Apelación 

El demadante puede apelar la decisión enviando una apelación por escrito explicando la 

razón(es) por dicha apelación. Dicha apelación por escrito debe ser enviada a: 

El Director Ejecutivo de ECCTA (CEO) 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

7a Attachment 1

mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


18 

 

El Director Ejecutivo de ECCTA, ó su designado, deberá considerar inmediatamente la apelación. 

Consideración a la apelación se basará en la apelación presentada por escrito y los documentos 

adjuntos y a discresión de el Director Ejecutivo ó su designado, puede convocar  una junta con el 

demandante. El Director Ejecutivo de ECCTA, ó su designado dentro de un tiempo razonable, 

pero que no exeda (60) dias hábiles de haber recibido la apelación por ECCTA, deberá expedir su 

decisión por escrito al demandante. La decision tomada por el Director Ejecutivo de ECCTA, ó su 

designado deberán constituir la determinación administrative final por parte de ECCTA.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

  

7a Attachment 1



19 

 

 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Título VI Formulario de Queja 

Título VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles de 1964 declara “Ninguna persona en los Estados Unidos será  

discriminada en base a su raza, color, ó por su origen de nacionalidad, ni tampoco sará excluida de la 

participación en, negarle los beneficios de, ó ser sujeto a discriminación bajo ningún programa ó 

actividad que reciba asistencia federal financiera.”   

Favor de proveer la siguiente información a fin de procesar su queja. Hay asistencia disponible si lo 

require. Complete éste formulario y envíelo ó entrégelo personalmente en la officina de:  

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
El Gerente de Quejas (Compliance Manager) 
801 Wilbur Avenue 
Antioch, CA 94509 
 

También tiene la alternativa de mandarlo for Fax 1-925-757-2530 o bién, por correo electrónico a 

CivilRights@eccta.org 

Nombre del Demandante:         

Dirección:            

Ciudad:     Estado:    Zona Postal:     

Número Telefónico (Casa):      Trabajo:    

 

Nombre de la persona discriminada (si es diferente del demandante): 

Nombre:           

Dirección:           

Ciudad:     Estado:    Zona Postal:    

 

De la lista siguiente, cual de ellas describe mejor la razón por la que used cree que fué discriminado? 

(Marque todas las que apliquen): 

  Raza 

  Color  

  Origen de Nacionalidad   

En que fecha ocurrió dicha discriminación?        

 

7a Attachment 1

mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


20 

Describa la presunta discriminación con el mayor detalle posible. Explique que pasó y porque cree usted 

que hubo discriminación en su contra. Describa todas las personas que estuvieron involucradas. Incluya 

el nombre y la información para comunicarse con la persona(s) quién discriminó en contra suyo (si sabe) 

así como también los nombres y la información para ponerse en contacto con testigos. Favor de incluir 

el número de ruta y hacia donde se dirigia, la hora en que ocurrió el incidente, y el número del autobús, 

si es que aplica. Si necesita espacio adicional, adjunte hojas de papel adicionales ó también puede usar 

el reverso de ésta hoja.  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Presentó usted ésta queja ante otra agencia federal, estatal, ó local; ó ante alguna corte federal ó 

estatal? (Marque el espacio correspondiente)    Si   No 
 

Si la respuesta es afirmativa, marque cada agencia con la cual usted presentó su queja: 

Agencia Federal ___________________ Corte Federal ______________ Agencia Estatal ____________  

Corte Estatal _____________________ Agencia Local ______________ Otra _____________________  

Favor de proveer información de la persona de la agencia (ó agencias) donde presentó su queja:  
 
Nombre:           
 
Dirección:           
 
Ciudad:     Estado    Zona Postal    
 
Número Telefónico:       
 
Fecha de la Denuncia:      
 
Firme la denuncia en el espacio de abajo. Adjute cualquier documento que usted considere importante 
para su queja. 
 
         _____________    

(Firma-opcional)      (Fecha) 

 

 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

7a Attachment 1



21 

Complaint Procedures 

Upon receipt of a written Title VI complaint submitted on the Title VI Complaint Form, the complaint is 

investigated in accordance to the procedures set forth in this program.  

In addition to receiving written Title VI complaint submissions on the Title VI Complaint Form, ECCTA will 

maintain a log of customer reports that are potential Title VI complaints.  Upon initial notification, each 

complaint is reviewed to determine if it may be a potential Title VI complaint.  If the complaint is a 

potential Title VI complaint, Title VI is indicated in the customer service program.  Each potential Title VI 

complaint is thoroughly investigated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this program. 

ECCTA’s Compliance Manager reviews all complaints to determine if there were any additional potential 

Title VI complaints that were not identified earlier that may need further investigation.   

Title VI complaints are placed within a Title VI complaint binder.  When the Title VI Program is updated, 

all complaints in the Title VI binder received after the previous Title VI Program submission will be listed 

in the updated Title VI Program. 

All complaints received by ECCTA are entered into an internal web-based customer service program. 

Complaints remain recorded within the web-based customer service program indefinitely for future 

review. 

After each complaint is closed, it is circulated to ECCTA management for review.  

7a Attachment 1



 

22 

List of Transit-Related Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 
 

Since the previous Title VI Program submission in 2021, ECCTA has not received any written Title VI 

complaints submitted on the Title VI Complaint Form or any lawsuits.  However, ECCTA’s customer 

service department did receive customer complaints that were identified as potential Title VI 

complaints.  The following log identifies those complaint calls. 

Complaints Complaint 
Date 

Summary of Allegations Status of 
Complaint 

Investigation Response 

1. 5/20/2021 Customer reported that the 
operator did not open the 
door for her to board the bus 
when it was already stopped 
at the bus stop. The driver 
departed the bus stop without 
boarding the customer.  
Customer stated that maybe it 
was because she was Latina. 
Basis of complaint: race 

Closed. Unable to validate 
customer’s complaint.  All 
buses at reported location 
and time did not leave 
any passengers behind.  
Asked for additional 
information from the 
customer and customer 
did not follow up.  
Complaint 
unsubstantiated. 

2. 6/6/2021 Customer reported that an 
operator did not answer his 
question about what bus to 
board and felt discriminated 
against because of his accent.  
Basis of complaint: national 
origin 

Closed. Unable to validate 
customer’s complaint. 
Reviewed video footage 
and operator answered 
customer’s question.  
Customer did not want 
follow up on complaint. 
Complaint 
unsubstantiated. 

3. 9/26/2021 Customer reported that the 
operator did not open the 
door for her to board the bus 
when it was already stopped 
at the bus stop. The driver 
departed the bus stop without 
boarding the customer.  
Customer stated that she felt 
it was undue discriminatory 
bias and racist. 
Basis of complaint: race 

Closed. Operator was held to First 
Transit disciplinary 
standard for leaving a 
passenger at the bus stop 
and provided training.  
Pass up was not 
substantiated as 
intentional pass up or 
Title VI related. Customer 
did not want follow up on 
complaint. 

4. 2/14/2022 Customer reported that her 
son was passed up by the 
operator and that she hoped 
it was not racial as her child is 
African American.  
Basis of complaint: race 

Closed. Operator was held to First 
Transit disciplinary 
standard for passing bus 
stop and provided 
training.  Pass up was not 
substantiated as 

7a Attachment 1



 

23 

intentional pass up or 
Title VI related. Followed 
up with customer. 

5. 7/24/2022 Customer reported that the 
paratransit operator left 
without her when she forgot 
her bag in the house and that 
she felt it was racially 
motivated. 
Basis of complaint: race 

Closed. Complaint 
unsubstantiated.  When 
the operator arrived to 
pick up the customer, the 
customer reported she 
was not ready and still 
needed to get dressed.  
Operator followed 
protocol, called into 
Dispatch, held 3 minutes, 
then proceeded.  
Customer did not want 
follow up on the 
complaint. 

6. 2/15/2023 Customer reported that her 
return operator was rude and 
used racial slurs to a 
passenger that was dropped 
off before her. 
Basis of complaint: race 

 Complaint 
unsubstantiated. Video 
footage was reviewed and 
the operator was not seen 
to use racial slurs directed 
towards a passenger.  
Customer did not want 
follow up on the 
complaint. 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

24 

Public Participation Plan 

ECCTA’s Public Participation Plan provides a framework of outreach tools to guide a customized and 

strategic approach to public participation.  The plan describes ECCTA’s approach to public participation 

for planning activities and bus service changes.   

In addition to communication strategies and outreach tools providing opportunities for the public to 

participate, outreach tools are included that specifically address language or economic barriers that may 

be preventing minority, low-income, and limited English proficient (LEP) populations from participating 

effectively in ECCTA’s decision making process.  The Public Participation Plan complements ECCTA’s 

activities for reaching individuals with limited English proficiency that are described in ECCTA’s Language 

Assistance Plan. 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) delayed 

performing on-board passenger surveys for transit agencies within its jurisdiction for two years, which 

required MTC to push the schedule for transit agency on-board passenger surveys further out.  MTC 

decided to perform a high-level survey to re-baseline ridership trip and demographics of the region’s 

transit agencies with a Snapshot Survey from the Fall of 2023 to the Spring of 2024.  ECCTA is 

participating in the Snapshot Survey.  Because MTC is two years behind in performing on-board 

passenger surveys for transit agencies within its jurisdiction, MTC plans to perform ECCTA’s next Title VI 

on-board passenger survey in 2027.  Therefore, ECCTA is using data from the most recent on-board 

passenger survey conducted by MTC in the Spring of 2019.  According to the 2019 on-board passenger 

survey, about one-third of ECCTA’s passengers indicated they spoke a language other than English at 

home.  79.3% of the passengers indicated they spoke Spanish at home.  The next highest language 

spoken at home was Tagalog at 4.6%.  Of all passengers indicating they spoke a language other than 

English at home, more than two-thirds indicated they spoke English “very well.”  All of ECCTA’s vital 

documents are translated into Spanish. 

More than one-third of passengers reported an annual household income below $25,000 and 

approximately half of all passengers reported an annual household income of between $25,000 and 

$75,000. 

The purpose of ECCTA’s Public Participation Plan is multi-faceted. It seeks to: 

• Inform the public about transportation issues and the planning process. 

• Establish the process whereby the public can express concerns, desires, and values. 

• Reach a wide range of residents and increase the participation of under-represented 

populations. 

• Ensure ECCTA’s programs and activities reflect community values. 

• Improve service based on public input. 

To accomplish these goals, ECCTA employs numerous outreach tools. ECCTA selects appropriate 

outreach tools based on factors such as the demographics of the affected population, the type of public 

participation process planned, community input needed, available staffing, and resources. 

7a Attachment 1



 

25 

These outreach tools include: 

1.) Website: 

ECCTA posts notices and announcements on the agency’s website at www.TriDeltaTransit.com.  

Google Translate allows website visitors to instantly translate the website content into the 

needed language. For planning outreach, ECCTA provides project information, community 

engagement opportunities, and how to provide input.  ECCTA posts all service change  

information on the website.  For major service changes, ECCTA provides service change 

information, community engagement opportunities, and how to provide input.   

 

2.) Email/Text Notification: 

ECCTA communicates via email and/or text message to customers over an email/text message 

notification system.   Customers receive the specific information they register to receive, 

whether it is route information, general ECCTA news, outreach activities, service change 

information, etc.  For planning outreach, ECCTA provides project information, community 

engagement opportunities, and how to provide input.  For major service changes, ECCTA 

provides service change information, community engagement opportunities, and how to 

provide input.   

 

3.) Social Media: 

Due to the popularity and ease of use, social media is used for its quick and widespread reach.  

ECCTA uses Facebook, Instagram, Twitter and YouTube to communicate route information, 

general ECCTA news, outreach activities, service change information, alerts, etc.   

 

4.) On-Board Resources: 

Printed materials are available on buses to convey planning outreach and service change 

information.  Critical information that appears on these materials are translated into languages 

identified as spoken or written by a target population. If all information cannot be translated, 

notices describe where to obtain the translated information.   

 

5.) Customer Service: 

In-person language assistance is available at ECCTA’s administrative office or via telephone. 

The public can visit the administrative office or call to receive information, as well as give 

comments and input. The customer service center number is included in ECCTA materials. Staff 

have access to LanguageLine telephone translation services covering the full range of languages. 

Any customers who are on hold on an ECCTA phone receive a recorded announcement which 

highlights planning and other changes that require community input. 

 

6.) Print Materials: 

In addition to on-board printed information, ECCTA publicizes public participation and outreach 

information via print materials, such as flyers and other direct mail materials. ECCTA places 

announcements at the top 20 frequently boarded bus stops and also places print ads when 

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/


26 

applicable.  Critical information that appears on these materials are translated into languages 

identified as spoken or written by a target population. If all information cannot be translated, 

notices describe where to obtain the translated information. 

7.) Media Relations: 

Press releases and media events disseminate project and agency information to local, national, 

and trade media outlets.  ECCTA will issue press releases for planning outreach and service 

changes.   

8.) Surveys: 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is currently responsible for conducting a 

statistically-valid on-board survey of ECCTA passengers, with issue-specific surveys being used 

under appropriate circumstances. Surveys include adequate and appropriate language 

translations and can be conducted either in-person, over-the-telephone, online, or a 

combination of the three.   

9.) Community Events: 

ECCTA staff participate in community events in Eastern Contra Costa County to establish a 

presence, promote programs, and interact with residents.  Staff provide information on ECCTA 

services and programs, answer questions, assist with trip planning, and obtain input from riders 

and the public.  If there is a predominate language other than English spoken at the community 

event, a staff member speaking the predominate language represents ECCTA at the event or 

staff use available translation apps. 

10.) Contractor Outreach: 

Outreach to contractors regarding ECCTA’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) programs 

provides information about opportunities to bid and compete for upcoming contracts.  ECCTA 

collaborates with DBE officers in transit agencies across the Bay Area, as a member of the 

Business Outreach Committee (BOC), to develop and stage outreach and educational events 

each year.  The events inform the contracting community of upcoming contracting 

opportunities, assist small contractors in developing relationships with prime contractors, and 

provide education on becoming DBE certified businesses. The BOC also issues a quarterly 

newsletter with announcements of upcoming contracting opportunities. 

11.) Community Based Organizations: 

Community Based Organizations (CBOs) play an important role in public participation. ECCTA 

works with a variety of CBOs, including ethnic centers, geographic-specific organizations such as 

tenant associations, neighborhood and community groups, civic groups, business organizations, 

education facilities, service providers for youth, families, disabled individuals, recreation 

facilities, senior organizations, and many others. Staff works with the CBOs to conduct outreach. 

7a Attachment 1



 

27 

 

 

Below is a list of some of the CBOs ECCTA works with: 

 

Organization Address City 
Title 

VI/Environmental 
Justice Group 

La Clinica 
2240 Gladstone 
Drive, Suite 2 

Pittsburg Low income, minority 

La Clinica 2021 Main Street Oakley Low income, minority 

Antioch Senior Center 415 W. 2nd Street Antioch Low income, minority 

Brentwood Senior 
Center 

193 Griffith Lane Brentwood Low income 

Pittsburg Senior 
Center 

300 Presidio Lane Pittsburg Low income, minority 

Oakley Senior Center 215 Second Street Oakley Low income, minority 

Employment and  
Human Services 

4545 Delta Fair 
Boulevard 

Antioch Low income, minority 

SparkPoint Family 
Service Center 

3105 Willow Pass 
Road 

Bay Point Low income, minority 

Opportunity Junction 
3102 Delta Fair 
Boulevard 

Antioch Low income 

 

 

12.) Public Meetings and Public Hearings: 

Public meetings and public hearings allow ECCTA to give and to receive information from a 

broad segment of the community. Such meetings are widely advertised and open to all 

community members and can range from open houses to public hearings.  These meetings 

provide stakeholders with the most current information in an interactive setting.  Meetings may 

consist of brief presentations with brainstorming discussions, full project or service proposal 

reviews, or small informational sessions.   ECCTA compiles any comment and written statements 

to document public input and present to the Board of Directors.  Staff provides information to 

participants on upcoming public meetings and resources on ECCTA’s website.  

 

ECCTA’s public meetings and public hearings are held at locations that are transit and Americans 

with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessible, and they may be scheduled at various times of the day to 

accommodate working families, individuals, and seniors.  Convenient and accessible locations, 

facilities, and meeting times maximize opportunities to provide input. 

 

ECCTA’s public meetings may also be held in an online/by telephone format when in-person 

meetings are not feasible. 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

28 

 

As appropriate, ECCTA hosts public meetings and public hearings with translation assistance 

provided by bilingual ECCTA staff or external translators. 

a. Public Hearings:  

A public hearing must be held whenever a major service change or change to the basic 

fare structure will be enacted. Notice of the public hearing shall be posted at least 

twenty-one (21) days prior to the hearing. All notices shall include a description of the 

matter(s) to be considered. The notices shall also state where and when the hearing(s) 

shall take place, as well as options to view the information for the public that cannot 

attend the hearing. 

 

Should a specific group(s) or neighborhood(s) be impacted by a proposed change, ECCTA 

shall use their best efforts to publish information targeting the impacted group(s) or 

neighborhood(s). 

At a public hearing, ECCTA shall afford any interested party the opportunity to present 

statements, both written and oral. Limitations may be established on the length of the 

presentation in order for all community members to be heard.  

 

13.)  Digital Tools: 

ECCTA uses digital outreach to geotarget specific demographics or regions of eastern Contra 

Costa County.  ECCTA also uses the following smart phone applications to message passengers 

regarding passenger information and service changes:   

a. Tri Delta Watch 
Description: Safety reporting application 
Capability: Push notification to passengers and an alert posted in the app.  ECCTA is able 
to identify those who have selected Spanish as their language of choice and provide a 
message in the appropriate language. 
 

b. Tri MyRide 

Description: Microtransit application 

Capability: Push notification to passengers, a pop up when they open the app, and an 

alert in their app inbox.  ECCTA is able to identify those who have selected Spanish as 

their language of choice and provide a message in the appropriate language. 

 

c. Transit 

Description: Real-time route information and bus-crowding application 

Capability: Push notification to passengers, a banner at the top of the app homepage, 

and route specific notifications. ECCTA is able to identify those who have selected 

Spanish as their language of choice and provide a message in the appropriate language. 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

29 

 

d. Easy Book 

Description: On-line paratransit booking system 

Capability: Allows for email alerts as well as notification section at the top of the 

webpage.  A message in Spanish is included in each notification. 

The following table provides an overview of ECCTA’s outreach tools for public participation. 

Outreach Tool When Used 

Website Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

Email/Text Notification Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

Social Media Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

On-Board Resources Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

Print Materials Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

Media Relations Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 

Surveys Passenger information/Demographics 

Community Events Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

Contractor Outreach Participation 

Community Based Organizations Planning outreach 
Major service changes 
Participation 

Public Meetings Planning outreach 
Major service changes 

Digital Tools Passenger information 
Planning outreach 
Service changes 
Participation 

7a Attachment 1



 

30 

 

 

Public Outreach by Type of Service Change 

Outreach Tool Major Service Change Minor Service Change 

Press Releases X X 

On-Board Resources X X 

Print Resources X  

Social Media X X 

Email/Text Notification X X 

Website X X 

Community Based 
Organizations 

X  

Community Events X X 

Public Meetings X  

Digital Tools X X 

 

Summary of Outreach 

Since the previous Title VI Program submission in 2021, the following public participation outreach 

activities were performed: 

• Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign 

A service and fare equity analysis was conducted for a bus route evaluation and redesign.   

Initial public participation outreach was conducted in the fall of 2020 and was used to identify the 

transit improvements that were of greatest value to east Contra Costa County residents and transit 

riders.  The initial outreach survey responses were used to develop proposed route revisions.  The 

second feedback survey conducted in the fall of 2021 was used to get input on each of the proposed 

route revisions. At the October 27, 2021 Tri Delta Transit Board meeting, Board members held a public 

hearing, reviewed outreach feedback, and approved the route redesign as presented.  The approved 

route and fare changes were implemented in September 2022. 

Promotion of the project and survey were done through the following public participation activities:  

• Direct email to community organizations, including the community-based organizations listed in 
Tri Delta Transit’s Title VI program plan  
• Direct email to businesses in the transit service area  
• Direct email and follow up to cities and chambers of commerce  
• Direct email to individuals participating in 511 Contra Costa free and low-cost bus pass programs  
• Direct email invitation to respondents of the initial outreach survey to participate in the feedback 
outreach  
• General and targeted social media posts on Twitter, Facebook, and Instagram  
• On-board, transit center and bus stop signage  
• Web and print ads, including to  
• Agency service alerts and newsletters  

7a Attachment 1



 

31 

• 511 Contra Costa’s TDM outreach newsletter  
• Virtual town hall meeting  
 

Electronic promotion offered a direct link to the project page and survey. Print promotion offered a QR 

code and/or URL to the project website, along with a phone number and email to request a paper 

survey or to take the survey over the phone. All survey options, the virtual town hall meeting, and 

outreach materials were offered in Spanish and English. 

The Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign Service and Fare Equity Analysis is included in Appendix A. 

 

• COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes 

 

On March 17, 2020 the Health Officer of Contra Costa County ordered all individuals living in the county 

to shelter at their place of residence, except to leave to provide or to receive certain essential services 

or engage in certain essential activities and work for essential businesses and governmental services, e-

ffective 12:01am on March 17, 2020 until 11:59pm on April 7, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The 

shelter in place was then extended until 11:59pm on May 3, 2020 and extended again until 11:59pm on 

May 31, 2020. Contra Costa County continued to experience a significant increase in community 

transmission and illness from COVID-19 and the Health Officer of Contra Costa County continued to 

impose additional restrictions on certain businesses and activities that were previously cleared for 

operation on July 11, 2020. 

 

On April 19, 2020 ECCTA implemented changes to service in response to changing travel patterns and 

significantly reduced staffing levels due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Since April 19, 2020, ECCTA brought 

back service when resources allowed and temporarily restored full service on July 4, 2021.  With 

emergency related temporary transit service changes still in effect twelve months after service 

reductions were introduced in April 2020, ECCTA conducted a service equity analysis of its COVID-19 

temporary service changes as of April 2021 to be responsive to the FTA’s requirement that changes in 

effect longer than twelve months be subject to such an analysis. 

 

ECCTA made service adjustments to respond to the COVID-19 State of Emergency to account for 

significant constraints on resources, specifically staff availability.  ECCTA was unable to meet its pre-

pandemic service demands and standards with a shortage of operators.  When resources allowed, 

ECCTA restored service to pre-pandemic service levels.   

 

Below is an overview of the COVID-19 related temporary service changes that were implemented 

between April 2020 and April 2021. 

• April 19, 2020- In response to a steep drop in ridership and staff availability due to the COVID-19 

State of Emergency, service adjustments were made. 

• November 8, 2020- The majority of ECCTA’s bus routes feed into the Bay Area Rapid Transit 

(BART) system. In response to BART adjusting service due to the COVID-19 State of Emergency, 

ECCTA made service adjustments to better meet BART trains. 

7a Attachment 1



 

32 

• March 21, 2021- In response to BART adjusting service again due to the COVID-19 State of 

Emergency, ECCTA made service adjustments to better meet BART trains. 

 

To respond to the requirement stated in FTA Circular 4702.1B (Title VI) that service changes in effect 

longer than twelve months are subject to a service equity analysis, the equity analysis compared ECCTA 

service at the following two time points:  

• April 2020 – COVID-19 temporary service reductions began in April 2020.  ECCTA used service in 

effect before the initial COVID-19 service reductions began in April 2020, using the most recent 

pre-pandemic service adjustments which went into effect on February 10, 2019.  

• April 2021 – ECCTA  used service in effect twelve months from the initial COVID-19 temporary 

service reductions, using the latest service adjustments that went into effect on March 21, 2021.  

 

Throughout the pandemic, ECCTA welcomed feedback regarding the temporary service changes.  ECCTA 

staff followed up with each individual as requested.  Comments were collected online, by email, 

telephone, fax, mail or in-person.  

To engage passengers and the public, ECCTA placed information online at www.TriDeltaTransit.com, on-

board buses, and on social media using Facebook and Twitter.  ECCTA sent text messages and email 

messages.  All information was communicated in both English and in Spanish.  Spanish is the identified 

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) language in ECCTA’s service area.  

To inform the public and passengers of the public hearing, ECCTA posted the information and service 

equity analysis on the website at www.TriDeltaTransit.com and emailed and mailed the public meeting 

agenda to stakeholders, including media.  An email/text alert also notified the public and passengers of 

the public hearing. 

A public hearing was held on February 23, 2022 at ECCTA’s headquarters in Antioch, California.  The 

public hearing was conducted as both an in-person and online Zoom format, so participants could 

choose to join the public hearing in-person or remotely.  The Americans with Disability Act (ADA) 

accessible location was also accessible by transit.  A Spanish speaking interpreter was available for the 

public hearing.  There was one comment from the public. A member of the LGBTQ community reported 

he had noticed over the years the respect that Tri Delta Transit bus drivers had offered to customers.  He 

pointed out however, that there was nothing in Title VI referring to LGBTQ and asked if that needed to be 

addressed.  ECCTA staff responded and informed that Title VI addressed race, color, or national origin, as 

well as low-income. 

ECCTA’s Board of Directors approved the service equity analysis. The February 23, 2022 agenda and 

associated resolution are located in Appendix B. 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/
http://www.trideltatransit.com/


 

33 

• Paratransit Mobile Fare Payment Type Elimination- Fare Equity Analysis 

ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App was created by an app developer.  Unexpectedly, ECCTA began 

experiencing problems with the backend of the Mobile Ticket App and customers were no longer 

able to purchase tickets or use existing tickets or wallet funds in their account.  ECCTA contacted 

the app developer and after waiting two months, with no resolution presented by the app 

developer, ECCTA decided to end the contract with the app developer and eliminate the Mobile 

Ticket App.  Fixed route customers were transitioned to another existing mobile ticket app for fixed 

route fare payment on a mobile device, but there was no alternate existing mobile ticket app to 

transition paratransit customers to for paratransit fare payment on a mobile device.  ECCTA 

anticipates an alternate mobile ticket app for paratransit customers to be available in 2025.  Cash 

and paratransit one-way ride tickets are accepted on ECCTA’s paratransit vehicles and provide an 

alternative payment to the mobile ticket option. 

 

The elimination of ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App and ability for paratransit customers to use a mobile 

device to pay a paratransit fare requires a fare equity analysis due to the elimination of a paratransit 

fare payment type.   

 

The public engagement activities related to the fare equity analysis were conducted from the time 
ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App stopped functioning to after elimination of the app.  Since ECCTA’s Mobile 
Ticket App suddenly and unexpectedly stopped working and the app developer was not able to fix the 
problems causing the app to not function correctly, ECCTA was not able to perform outreach in advance 
of the app not working. The outreach provided an opportunity to both educate and to collect input from 
riders on the elimination of the Mobile Ticket App.  In addition, ECCTA was able to outreach to 
customers regarding receiving a refund for tickets and wallet funds in the ECCTA Mobile Ticket App.  No 
complaints or negative comments were directly expressed over the phone to ECCTA staff who answered 
customers questions about the Mobile Ticket App. 
 
Information was communicated in both English and in Spanish.  Spanish is the identified Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) language in ECCTA’s service area. Information was available in other languages upon 
request and through Language Line translation. 
 
ECCTA engaged the public through the following activities: 

• Website- www.TriDeltaTransit.com communicated rider news with updated information on 
ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App and requested Mobile Ticket App customers to contact ECCTA.  
Information was also communicated by text and email alert. 

• Social Media- ECCTA’s Twitter and Facebook account were used to communicate information 
about ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App and requested Mobile Ticket App customers to contact ECCTA. 

• Elerts (Tri Delta Watch)- Communicated information about ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App and 
requested Mobile Ticket App customers to contact ECCTA. 

• Scheduling Department/Customer Service Department- ECCTA’s scheduling and customer 
service departments informed and updated callers on ECCTA’s Mobile Ticket App. 

• Operations In-Service Meetings- Operations employees were informed and updated on ECCTA’s 
Mobile Ticket App so they could convey the information to passengers if necessary. 

7a Attachment 1



 

34 

• WiFi Splash Page-A banner on ECCTA’s free WiFi informed and updated customers on ECCTA’s 
Mobile Ticket App and requested Mobile Ticket App customers to contact ECCTA. 

• Mobile Ticket App Paratransit Customer Survey- ECCTA sent a survey to the 65 paratransit 
Mobile Ticket App customers to develop a detailed understanding of passenger demographics 
and to communicate information about the Mobile Ticket App, provide contact information for 
customers to receive assistance with receiving a refund for existing tickets or wallet funds in 
their Mobile Ticket App account, and provide a comment section for customers.   

• Email- ECCTA emailed all Mobile Ticket App customers to communicate information about the 
Mobile Ticket App, provide contact information for customers to receive assistance with 
receiving a refund for existing tickets or wallet funds in their Mobile Ticket App account and 
provide an opportunity for feedback. 

 

ECCTA’s Board of Directors approved the fare equity analysis. The fare equity analysis, including the June 

28, 2023 resolution are located in Appendix C. 

• Additional public participation outreach activities: 

o January 2021- Revitalize Day Program outreach, community outreach at Pittsburg Senior 

Center, Overcoming Transportation Barriers presentation with Contra Costa County 

Behavioral Health 

o February 2021- Sierra School outreach, Guide Dogs for the Blind outreach, Somerset Senior 

Apartments outreach presentation, ODAT non-profit youth organization Transportation 

Justice Youth Team presentation 

o March 2021- Working Wonders Day Program outreach, Overcoming Transportation Barriers 

presentation with Contra Costa County Behavioral Health 

o April 2021- East County Resource and Networking Meeting presentation 

o May 2021- Delta Veterans Group outreach, outreach to community on Free WIFI provided 

on buses 

o June 2021- Overcoming Transportation Barriers presentation with Contra Costa County 

Behavioral Health 

o July 2021- Tri MyRide outreach, Open House and Job Fair outreach 

o August 2021- bus schedule community outreach, school registration outreach 

o September 2021- partnered with Bay Area Transit Agencies on All Aboard Bay Area Transit- 

get back to transit campaign, partnered with Bay Area Transit Agencies for Free Fare 

September campaign, assisted Contra Costa Transportation Authority in East Bay 

transportation survey campaign, Revitalize Day Program outreach, participation in 

Committee for Social Inclusion 

o October 2021- System Redesign survey promotion and public hearing, October 6th Free Ride 

for 4th Annual California Clean Air Day campaign 

o December 2021- bus schedule community outreach 

o January/February 2022- COVID-19 Temporary Service Change public hearing outreach, 

Gateway school outreach, Clipper START community outreach, bus schedule community 

outreach, DBE/SBE outreach for Meet the Buyers Procurement forum 

7a Attachment 1



 

35 

o March 2022- Clipper START community outreach, Delta Veterans Group Outreach, Liberty 

Union High School District’s Gateway Program outreach 

o April 2022- DBE/SBE outreach for DBE Triennial Goal 

o May 2022- Bike to Work Day community outreach 

o June 2022- City of Pittsburg Green Footprint Festival community outreach 

o July 2022- July 4th holiday schedule community outreach, high school registration outreach, 

ECCTA 45th Birthday and Tri MyRide 3rd Anniversary community outreach 

o August 2022- Customer service community outreach, student outreach for Pass2Class 511 

Contra Costa Program, DBE/small business construction contractor outreach 

o September 2022- System Redesign community outreach, paratransit fare equity analysis 

survey, Oakley Park & Ride community outreach, Antioch Senior Center outreach 

o October 2022- Pittsburg Chamber of Commerce Halloween community outreach event 

o November 2022- Quail Lodge Assisted Living senior outreach, dialysis unit outreach 

o December 2022- Outreach with Accessible Services to Vistability, dialysis and Commercial 

Support Services  

o January 2023- Antioch Senior Center, Stoneman Village and Harmony Home senior outreach 

o February 2023- Ride4Free community outreach for 511 Contra Costa program, Antioch 

Senior Center outreach, DBE/small business outreach for procurement series 

o March 2023- Transit Driver Appreciation Day/free fare community outreach, Means Based 

Fare Pilot Program outreach 

o April 2023- Means Based Fare Pilot Program outreach, Antioch Senior Center outreach, 

Merrill Gardens Assisted Living senior outreach 

o May 2023- LMC Elementary school outreach event, Bike to Wherever Day community 

outreach, Contra Costa County Fair event community outreach, Means Based Fare Pilot 

Program outreach, dialysis unit outreach 

o June 2023- City of Pittsburg Green Footprint Festival community outreach, City of Oakley 

Summerfest community outreach, Means Based Fare Pilot Program outreach, DBE/small 

business outreach for DBE/ACDBE certification workshops 

o July 2023-Student outreach for Pass2Class 511 Contra Costa program, Clipper START and 

Clipper Mobile program community outreach, City of Oakley Summerfest community 

outreach, Freedom High School student outreach 

o August 2023- Student outreach for Pass2Class 511 Contra Costa program, Dallas Ranch 

Middle School community outreach, Oakley Senior Center community outreach 

o September 2023- Schedule change community outreach, community outreach at Pittsburg 

Seafood and Music Festival event, Antioch Big Truck Event community outreach, community 

outreach for system changes/bus schedule 

o October 2023- Clipper START program community outreach, Pittsburg Chamber of 

Commerce Spooktacular community outreach event, community outreach at Brentwood 

Oktoberfest event, DBE/SBE outreach at CalTrans DBE Summit, Los Medanos College 

community outreach event 

o November 2023- DBE/SBE outreach at Meet the Buyers event, Pittsburg High School 

community outreach event 

7a Attachment 1



 

36 

Language Assistance Plan 
 

Per Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) implementing 

regulations, and Executive Order 13166 “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 

Proficiency (65 FR 50121, Aug. 11, 2000),” ECCTA is federally mandated to develop and implement a 

Language Assistance Plan, by which persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) can meaningfully 

access translations of written and oral information. As ECCTA is an FTA recipient receiving federal 

financial assistance, ECCTA must take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits, 

services, information, and other important portions of their programs and activities for LEP persons. 

ECCTA developed this LEP Plan to identify reasonable steps for providing language assistance to persons 

with limited English proficiency to access ECCTA’s services and programs.  As defined in Executive Order 

13166, LEP persons are those who do not speak English as their primary language and have limited 

ability to read, speak, write, or understand English. 

Four-Factor Analysis 

In compliance with Circular 4702.1B guidance, ECCTA conducted a four-factor analysis to determine the 

specific language services that are appropriate to provide to persons within its service area.  The four-

factor LEP analysis considers the following factors: 

1. The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by the 

program or recipient. 

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come into contact with the program. 

3. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the program to 

people’s lives. 

4. The resources available to the recipient for LEP outreach, as well as the costs associated with 

that outreach. 

Factor 1: The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by 

the program or recipient. 

To determine the number of Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons eligible to be served or likely to be 

encountered by ECCTA, ECCTA first determined what census tracks fell within its service area1. Taking 

data about these census tracts from the U.S. Census Bureau2, ECCTA was able to determine that the 

estimated total population within its service area was 301,053. Following the Census’ classification, and 

the formal definition of LEP persons as established by the FTA, ECCTA then focused on the number of 

                                                           
1 The census tracts within ECCTA’s service area are: 3020.05, 3020.06, 3020.07, 3020.09, 3020.13, 3020.14, 
3031.04, 3031.05, 3031.06, 3031.07, 3032.02, 3032.04, 3032.06, 3032.07, 3032.08, 3032.09, 3032.10, 3032.11, 
3040.01, 3050.00, 3060.02, 3060.03, 3060.04, 3071.01, 3071.02, 3072.01, 3072.02, 3072.04, 3072.05, 3080.01, 
3080.02, 3090.00, 3100.00, 3110.00, 3120.00, 3131.02, 3131.04, 3131.05, 3132.03, 3132.04, 3132.05, 3132.06, 
3141.02, 3141.03, 3141.05, 3141.06, 3142.00, 3150.00, 3160.00, 3170.00, 3180.00, 3200.04, 3211.01, 3280.00, 
3310.00, 3551.09, 3551.10, 3551.11, 3551.18, 3551.19, 3551.20, 3552.01, 3552.02 
2 U.S. Census, table C16001, “Language Spoken at Home for the Population 5 Years and Over” 

7a Attachment 1



 

37 

persons who, speaking any language other than English, spoke English “less than very well” within its 

service area. This total came to be 39,989 persons. 

ECCTA then examined the language groups themselves in order to better ascertain the extent of 

language assistance that might be needed. Spanish LEP speakers accounted for 8.6% of the total 

population (25,884 persons). The next three largest percentages of LEP speakers of the total population 

were those speakers speaking Tagalog3 at 1.4% (4,285 persons), Chinese4 at 1% (3,078 persons), and 

Vietnamese at 0.5%  (1,540).  

Safe Harbor languages are defined by FTA Circular 4702.1B as languages spoken by at least 1,000 
individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) within the service area. The circular states, “if a 
recipient provides written translation of vital documents for each eligible LEP language group that 
constitutes five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, of the total population of persons 
eligible to be served or likely to be affected or encountered, then such action will be considered 
strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations.”  
 
The top three languages in ECCTA’s service area have not changed since the previous Title VI Program 

submission in 2021: Spanish is the predominant language spoken by individuals with Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP). ECCTA had previously designated Tagalog and Chinese as Safe Harbor languages, and  

with census data tracking 1,540 LEP individuals speaking Vietnamese in ECCTA’s service area, ECCTA has 

added Vietnamese as a Safe Harbor language. 

ECCTA uses Remix, a proprietary geospatial data analysis that uses Geographic Information System (GIS) 

mapping software customized for ECCTA. Remix uses a fixed set of census block groups from a Shapefile 

ECCTA provided to Remix. Based upon the Remix map data for LEP individuals in ECCTA’s service area, it 

is assumed that the majority of these LEP individuals would be eligible to be served by, or otherwise 

encounter, ECCTA either via ECCTA’s fixed route, microtransit, or paratransit services. 

  

                                                           
3 For the purposes of this analysis, and following the example of the U.S. Census, Tagalog and Filipino were 
considered as one language under the Tagalog classification. 
 
4 For the purposes of this analysis, and following the example of the U.S. Census, Chinese includes Mandarin and 
Cantonese. 
 

7a Attachment 1



 

38 

Limited English Proficiency map- All LEP languages 
(Map from Remix) 

 

Limited English Proficiency map- Spanish language 
(Map from Remix) 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

39 

Factor 2: The frequency with which LEP persons come into contact with the program. 

To determine the frequency these LEP populations come into contact with our services, ECCTA looked at 

the most recent fixed route ridership survey, which was performed in the Spring of 2019, the amount of 

active eligible paratransit riders that had indicated a preferred language other than English on their 

applications for service, and LanguageLine/staff interpreted calls.  ECCTA focused on the 

aforementioned four languages (Spanish, Tagalog, Chinese and Vietnamese), as they would be the most 

likely language groups that would require language assistance. 

Fixed Route 

According to the ridership survey performed in 2019, passenger responses indicated that approximately 

30.9% of weekday passengers spoke a language other than English at home.  Of those weekday 

passengers who spoke a language other than English at home, 9.5% indicated they spoke English “less 

than well” and 1.3% spoke English “not at all”, for a total of 10.8%.  9.1% of the LEP weekday passengers 

speaking Spanish spoke English “less than well” and 1.7% “not at all”, for a total of 10.8%.  0% of 

passengers speaking Tagalog spoke English “less than well” or “not at all”, 0% of passengers speaking 

Chinese spoke English “less than well” or “not at all”, and 0% of passengers speaking Vietnamese spoke 

English “less than well” or “not at all”. 

44% of weekend passengers spoke a language other than English at home.  Of those weekend 

passengers who spoke a language other than English at home, 0% indicated they spoke English “less 

than well” and 1.3% spoke English “not at all”.  1.4% of the LEP weekend passengers speaking Spanish 

spoke English “not at all”, 0% of passengers speaking Tagalog spoke English “not at all”, 0% of 

passengers speaking Chinese spoke English “not at all”, and no weekend passengers indicated that they 

spoke Vietnamese. 

 

Paratransit 

When applying for eligibility to use ECCTA’s paratransit service, applicants are offered the option to 

indicate a primary language if other than English. While this does not mean that the applicant is an LEP 

individual, it is assumed that an LEP person would indicate their primary language on the eligibility 

application as other than English, especially if they speak English less than very well. This language is 

then noted in ECCTA’s scheduling software to indicate that this person may need translation services 

when being contacted about a paratransit ride. 

ECCTA looked at all the active eligible users of its paratransit services and found that out of 3,359 

paratransit passengers, 289 passengers indicated Spanish was their primary language, 75 passengers 

indicated Tagalog was their primary language, 13 passengers indicated Chinese was their primary 

language, and 6 passengers indicated Vietnamese was their primary language. Based on this 

information, 9% spoke Spanish as their primary language, 2% spoke Tagalog as their primary language, 

0% spoke Chinese as their primary language, and 0% spoke Vietnamese as their primary language. 

7a Attachment 1



 

40 

LanguageLine Calls/Staff Interpreted Calls 

ECCTA reviewed LanguageLine calls and staff interpreted calls received from June 2021 to June 2023. 

There were 2,404 LEP calls with 2,337 calls in Spanish, 2 calls in Tagalog, 1 call in Chinese, and 64 calls in 

Vietnamese.  Based on this information, approximately 97% of the callers spoke Spanish as their primary 

language, 0% spoke Tagalog as their primary language,  0% spoke Chinese as their primary language, and 

3% spoke Vietnamese as their primary language. 

Factor 3: The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the program to 

people’s lives. 

DOT Guidance states, “The more important the activity, information, service, or program, or the greater 
the possible consequences of the contact to the LEP individuals, the more likely language services are 
needed. The obligations to communicate rights to an LEP person who needs public transportation differ, 
for example, from those to provide recreational programming. A recipient needs to determine whether 
denial or delay of access to services or information could have serious or even life-threatening 
implications for the LEP individual…providing public transportation access to LEP persons is crucial. An 
LEP person’s inability to utilize effectively public transportation may adversely affect his or her ability to 
obtain health care, education, or access to employment.”  
 
Transit services operated by ECCTA continue to play a vital role in the lives of many residents in eastern 
Contra Costa County. ECCTA’s services serve major local commercial, employment, healthcare, 
education, and civic locations throughout Eastern Contra Costa County and include connections to the 
Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART), Central Contra Costa Transit Authority, and Western Contra Costa Transit 
Authority service areas that, in turn, reach most major job centers in the Bay Area. As such, for ECCTA 
riders, the importance of ECCTA’s services are paramount. 
 
Factor 4: The resources available to the recipient for LEP outreach, as well as the costs associated with 

that outreach. 

The DOT Guidance says, “A recipient’s level of resources and the costs imposed may have an impact on 
the nature of the steps it should take in providing meaningful access for LEP persons. Smaller recipients 
with more limited budgets are not expected to provide the same level of language services as larger 
recipients with larger budgets. In addition, ‘reasonable steps’ may cease to be reasonable where the 
costs imposed substantially exceed the benefits. Recipients should carefully explore the most cost-
effective means of delivering competent and accurate language services before limiting services due to 
resource concerns.”  
 
The majority of language assistance at ECCTA is provided via an over-the-phone interpretation 
service (currently LanguageLine translators translate the call into the caller’s spoken language) through 
the ECCTA call center and administration office, and translation services by bi-lingual staff. ECCTA’s 
website can be translated using the Google Translate button, which currently provides translations in 
more than 100 languages. At public meetings, interpreters can be requested in advance at no cost to the 
speaker. On the bus, interpretation may be provided by bi-lingual staff and all staff have access to 
language assistance cards that include the most frequently spoken languages in ECCTA’s service area.   
 
 

7a Attachment 1



 

41 

ECCTA currently provides resources to each LEP group while maintaining cost efficiency.  
 
Resources may include, but are not limited to: 

• Bilingual or multi-lingual staff members. 

• Professional translation services (can be implemented quickly with minimal cost). 

• Over-the-phone translation services through Language Line, which can be implemented quickly. 

• Documents, brochures, and other media of less-essential importance shall be translated into the 

LEP language groups upon request. 

• Information displays at community events where it is likely that significant numbers of LEP 

persons will attend shall be staffed by at least one person fluent in the identified language(s), if 

feasible. 

• Oral translation services shall be provided upon request. 

• Pictographs shall be provided whenever possible to instruct and depict necessary information 

and procedures. 

• Any other translation request, provided it does not create an undue financial or administrative 

burden. 

ECCTA translates the following vital documents: 

• Title VI Notice to Beneficiaries, Title VI Complaint Form, Title VI Complaint Procedures.  These 

printed and online vital documents are provided in English and in Spanish, and include a 

language assistance text block in all Safe Harbor languages.  The online information may also be 

accessed using Google Translate. 

• Paratransit applications, paratransit eligibility documents. These printed vital documents are 

provided in English and in Spanish, and include a language assistance text block in all Safe 

Harbor languages.  Downloadable online paratransit applications are provided in English and in 

Spanish, and include a language assistance text block in all Safe Harbor languages. 

• Bus schedule. This printed vital document is provided in English/Spanish and includes a 

language assistance text block in all Safe Harbor languages.  Bus schedule information online 

may be accessed using Google Translate. 

• Service alerts. The printed vital document is provided in English/Spanish and includes a 

language assistance text block in all Safe Harbor languages.  Service alerts online may be 

accessed using Google Translate. 

Four-Factor Analysis Final Results 

The Four-Factor Analysis performed by ECCTA identified the top four LEP language groups spoken within 

ECCTA’s service area: Spanish, Tagalog, Chinese, and Vietnamese. 

Spanish: 25,884 persons, or 8.6%, within the population of ECCTA’s service area are Spanish LEP 

persons.  Additionally, when looking at the frequency with which Spanish LEP speakers interact with 

ECCTA (12.2% for fixed route and 9% for paratransit, 97% for LanguageLine calls), ECCTA will translate all 

vital documents into Spanish. 

7a Attachment 1



 

42 

Tagalog: Tagalog LEP persons make up 1.4% of the total population within ECCTA’s service area (4,285 

persons). Additionally, when looking at the frequency with which Tagalog LEP speakers interact with 

ECCTA (0% for fixed route and 2% for paratransit, 0% for LanguageLine calls), ECCTA has determined 

that translation of vital documents into Tagalog is not warranted at this time. Tagalog is identified as a 

Safe Harbor language and the language assistance text block included on all vital documents includes 

Tagalog. 

Chinese: Chinese LEP persons make up 1% of the total population within ECCTA’s service area (3,078 

persons). Additionally, given the frequency with which Chinese LEP speakers interact with ECCTA (0% for 

fixed route and 0% for paratransit, 0% for LanguageLine calls), ECCTA has determined that translation of 

vital documents into Chinese is not warranted at this time.  Chinese is identified as a Safe Harbor 

language and the language assistance text block included on all vital documents includes Chinese. 

Vietnamese: Vietnamese LEP persons make up less than 0.5% of the entire service area population 

(1,540 persons). Additionally, given the frequency with which Vietnamese LEP speakers interact with 

ECCTA (0% for fixed route and 0% for paratransit, 3% for LanguageLine calls), ECCTA has determined 

that translation of vital documents into Vietnamese is not warranted at this time. Vietnamese is 

identified as a Safe Harbor language and the language assistance text block included on all vital 

documents includes Vietnamese. 

The language assistance text block included on all vital documents: 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-4040.  

Si necesita información en Español, llame al 1- 925-754-4040. 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-4040. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-4040. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-4040. 

(1-925-754-6622 is the contact number for Title VI Notice to Beneficiaries, Title VI Complaint Form, Title 

VI Complaint Procedures) 

Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance 

ECCTA may identify an LEP person who needs language assistance through the following activities: 

• If a customer speaks a language other than English, customer service language assistance is 

provided in person or over the phone; 

• If a customer requests a paratransit application or in-person assessment in a language other 

than English or Spanish, the Accessible Services Department provides the language assistance 

and records and reports on the assistance provided; 

• If bus operators or other front line staff identify language assistance needed, they provide the 

language assistance or connect the LEP passenger to customer service for language assistance 

using the language assistance card. 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

43 

Language Assistance Measures 

 

Based on the results of the four-factor analysis, ECCTA provides translation of vital documents into 

Spanish.  ECCTA provides a notice on vital documents stating “If information is needed in another 

language, please contact 1-925-754-4040” (1-925-754-6622 is the contact number for Title VI Notice to 

Beneficiaries, Title VI Complaint Form, Title VI Complaint Procedures).  The statement is made in 

Spanish, Tagalog, Chinese, and Vietnamese. 

Vital documents include:  

• Title VI Public Notice, Title VI Complaint Form, Title VI Complaint Procedures 

• paratransit applications, paratransit eligibility documents 

• bus schedule 

• service alerts 

 

There are numerous language assistance measures available to LEP persons, including oral and written 

language services.  ECCTA strives to assist an LEP person who needs language assistance via the 

following measures: 

• Bilingual or multi-lingual staff members. 

• Professional translation services. 

• On-call translation services through LanguageLine or similar language translation service. 

• Documents, brochures, and other media of less-essential importance shall be translated into the 

LEP language groups upon request. 

• Information displays at community events where it is likely that significant numbers of LEP 

persons will attend shall be staffed by at least one person fluent in the identified languages, if 

feasible. 

• Oral translation services shall be provided upon request. 

• Pictographs shall be provided whenever possible to instruct and depict necessary information 

and procedures. 

• Any other translation request, provided it does not create an undue financial or administrative 

burden. 

Employee Training 

ECCTA staff are required to know their obligation to provide meaningful access to information and 

services for LEP persons.  An effective LEP plan includes training to ensure that staff are informed about 

LEP policies and procedures, and that staff having contact with the public are trained to work effectively 

with the resources made available to them to assist LEP persons. 

ECCTA has identified that bus operators, supervisors, dispatchers, route information, schedulers, 

customer service and administrators are most likely to come into contact with LEP persons.   

Employees who work with the public shall periodically take part in training sessions to keep up to date 

on their responsibilities to LEP persons. 

7a Attachment 1



 

44 

 

Training includes: 

• Curriculum that educates staff on the Title VI requirements for providing meaningful access to 

services for LEP persons. 

• Providing staff with procedures to be followed when encountering an LEP person, including how 

to communicate using the “I Speak” language assistance cards. 

• LanguageLine (or similar language translation service) training for call center and administration 

staff. 

 

Providing Notice to LEP Persons 

The availability of language assistance for LEP persons shall be posted in the following locations: 

• Transit vehicles 

• Transit website at http://trideltatransit.com/title_VI.aspx 

• Public meeting agendas created by ECCTA 

Monitoring and Updating the Language Assistance Plan 

ECCTA updates the Language Assistance Plan (LEP Plan) every three years as required by the Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA).  ECCTA will continue monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of its LEP 

Plan by: 

• Analyzing census data as it becomes available to monitor demographic trends regarding LEP 

persons. 

• Monitoring paratransit applications and LanguageLine (or other translation service) and staff 

Interpreted calls to determine which LEP populations are most frequently interacting with 

ECCTA’s transit services. 

• Reviewing complaints. 

• Updating the Language Assistance Plan every three years in accordance with FTA regulations. 

All Language Assistance Plan changes are subject to approval by the ECCTA Board of Directors. 

The Language Assistance Plan shall be made available to the public at the following locations: 

• Any person may request the Language Assistance Plan by calling the Compliance Manager: 1-

925-754-6622, by email: CivilRights@eccta.org, by mail or in person: ECCTA Administration 

Office, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509, and shall be provided a copy of the plan at no 

cost. 

• A link to ECCTA’s Title VI Program which includes the LEP Plan is provided online at 

http://trideltatransit.com/civil-rights.aspx 

 

 

7a Attachment 1

http://trideltatransit.com/title_VI.aspx
mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org
http://trideltatransit.com/civil-rights.aspx


 

45 

 

Contact Information  

Questions or comments regarding the Language Assistance Plan may be submitted to: 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Compliance Manager 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

(925) 754-6622 

(925) 757-2530 (fax) 

CivilRights@eccta.org 

  

7a Attachment 1

mailto:CivilRights@eccta.org


 

46 

Membership of Non-Elected Boards and Committees 
 

ECCTA currently has no boards or committees that are non-elected.  All board members are appointed 

to ECCTA by each member of the JPA.  

7a Attachment 1



 

47 

Monitoring of Subrecipients for Title VI Compliance 
 

ECCTA does not have any subrecipients for Federal Transit Administration funding. 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

48 

Facility Equity Analysis 
 

ECCTA does not have any facility equity analysis. 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

49 

System-wide Service Standards and Policies 
 

Title VI guidelines require the adoption of system-wide service standards and policies.  System-wide 

service standards and policies ensure that service design and operation practices do not result in 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 

 

The required standards address: 

Vehicle load for each mode: Generally expressed as the ratio of passengers to the total number of seats 

on a vehicle, relative to the vehicle’s maximum load point. 

Vehicle headways for each mode: The amount of time between two vehicles traveling in the same 

direction on a given line or combination of lines. 

 

On-time performance for each mode: A measure of runs completed as scheduled. 

Service availability for each mode: A general measure of the distribution of routes within an agency’s 

service area. 

The required policies address: 

Distribution of transit amenities for each mode.  Transit amenities refer to items of comfort, 

convenience, and safety that are available to the general riding public. 

 

Vehicle assignment for each mode. Vehicle assignment refers to the process by which transit vehicles are 

placed into service in depots and on routes throughout the agency’s system. 

At the June 24, 2015 ECCTA Board of Directors meeting, the following service standards and policies 

were approved.  The June 24, 2015 Board Agenda is located in Appendix D. 

Vehicle Headways 

All established routes* shall operate on a minimum headway of at least one during the hour for the 

routes span of service with the following exceptions: 

1. Commuter service (limited stop service that is limited to peak periods) 

2. Routes that do not meet the current productivity guidelines. 

3. Routes that had trips with less than 5 passengers per trip and the trip was discontinued. 

4. Routes that have more than 1.5 miles between stops. 

5. Routes that have more than 1.5 miles between stops due to ADA bus stop accessibility 

standards. 

6. Routes that operate school days only. 

*An established route is defined as three years from the start of service 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

50 

Service Availability 

1. 40% of all census tracts shall have fixed route service that operates on a minimum of one hour 

headways as defined by Vehicle Headways. 

2. 40% of all census tracts shall have fixed route service that operates on a minimum of thirty 

minute headways during peak periods as defined by Vehicle Headways. 

3. 40% of all census tracts shall have fixed route service with at least one hour headways on 

weekends/holidays as defined by Vehicle Headways. 

Distribution of Transit Amenities 

The distribution of transit amenities including benches, shelters, and trash cans should be no less than 1 

amenity per directional route mile. The exceptions are commuter service routes, routes that have more 

than 1.5 miles between stops, and routes that are operated school days only. 

 

Transit Amenity Placement 

All amenities in place as of May 27, 2015 shall be grandfathered into the service standards. New 

placement shall follow the standards: 

• Shelters shall not be placed at stops with less than 41 average boardings/alightings per day or at 

locations that will not comply with ADA standards. 

• Benches will not be placed at stops with less than 15 average boardings/alightings per day or at 

locations that will not comply with ADA standards. 

• Trash receptacles will not be placed at stops with less than 25 average boardings/alightings per 

day or at locations that will not comply with ADA standards. 

Vehicle Assignments 

Revenue vehicles are assigned to routes on a rotating basis. All routes except Route 381 are interlined so 

buses assigned to a block will be used on all routes. Route 381 is not interlined because it is the only 

route that has headways and trip length that are efficient without interlining.  Buses are not assigned to 

a particular route therefore buses are evenly distributed throughout the entire service area on a random 

basis. 70% of all route blocks shall include at least two different routes.   

 

At the September 23, 2020 ECCTA Board of Directors meeting, the following standards were approved.  

The September 23, 2020 Board Agenda and associated resolution are located in Appendix E.  

Service Evaluation 
Standards 

Red Flags Goal 

Vehicle load factor  
(fixed route per peak 
period trip)5 

.100 
3.6 pax 

.750 
             27 pax 

On-time performance 
(fixed route and 
paratransit) 

Less than 90% 95.1% 

                                                           
5 These values represent the average vehicle load factor of each route.  

7a Attachment 1



 

51 

Monitoring Program Results 
 

ECCTA is required to monitor the performance of its transit system relative to system-wide service 

standards and policies, not less than every three years, to remain compliant with Title VI requirements.  

ECCTA conducts an analysis to compare the level of service provided to predominately minority areas 

with the level of service provided to predominately non-minority areas to ensure the end result of 

policies and decision-making is equitable.  If ECCTA determines, based on the monitoring activities, that 

prior decisions have resulted in a disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, ECCTA 

shall take corrective action to remedy the disparities to the greatest extent possible.  Per FTA C 4702.1B, 

a minority transit route means a route that has at least 1/3 of its total revenue mileage in a census block 

or block group, or traffic analysis zone(s) with a percentage of minority population that exceeds the 

percentage of minority population in the transit service area. ECCTA’s routes are currently all designated 

as minority transit routes with the exception of Route 202x. 

 

The results of ECCTA’s monitoring, as of September 2023 are found below. 

Vehicle Load 

Average 
Passenger 
Capacity AM Midday PM Peak 

  Eastbound Westbound Eastbound Westbound Eastbound Westbound 

Minority 
Routes 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

Load/ 
Seats 

Avg 
Load 

200x .053 1.9 .061 2.2 .067 2.4 .075 2.7 .067 2.4 .067 2.4 

201x .108 3.9 .178 6.4 .167 6.0 .125 4.5 .133 4.8 .119 4.3 

300x .058 2.1 .064 2.3 .081 2.9 .064 2.3 .100 3.6 .056 2.0 

379 .061 2.2         .111 4 

380 .236 8.5 .214 7.7 .344 12.4 .400 14.4 .211 7.6 .244 8.8 

381 .067 2.4 .075 2.7 .108 3.9 .111 4 .081 2.9 .081 2.9 

383 .131 4.7 .067 2.4 .083 3.0 .069 2.5 .089 3.2 .097 3.5 

385 .100 3.6 .078 2.8 .108 3.9 .100 3.6 .106 3.8 .108 3.9 

384 .094 3.4 .086 3.1 .094 3.4 .094 3.4 .108 3.9 .136 4.9 

387 .192 6.9 .181 6.5 .211 7.6 .228 8.2 .200 7.2 .164 5.9 

388 .178 6.4 .164 5.9 .217 7.8 .233 8.4 .186 6.7 .172 6.2 

389 .119 4.3   .122 4.4   .111 4.0   

390   .089 3.2     .114 4.1   

391 .133 4.8 .169 6.1 .178 6.4 .183 6.6 .156 5.6 .147 5.3 

395 .067 2.4   .056 2.0   .058 2.1   

380 Sat .225 8.1 .206 7.4 .258 9.3 .294 10.6 .236 8.5 .264 9.5 

380 Sun .225 8.1 .211 7.6 .225 8.1 .256 9.2 .203 7.3 .222 8.0 

7a Attachment 1



 

52 

381 Sat .122 4.4 .069 2.5 .122 4.4 .103 3.7 .103 3.7 .100 3.6 

381 Sun .083 3.0 .069 2.5 .111 4.0 .089 3.2 .089 3.2 .100 3.6 

388 Sat .119 4.3 .156 5.6 .178 6.4 .211 7.6 .192 6.9 .181 6.5 

 388 Sun .131 4.7 .136 4.9  .150 5.4 .178 6.4  .142 5.1 .167 6.0 

389 Sat .142 5.1   .106 3.8   .125 4.5   

389 Sun .122 4.4   .147 5.3   .117 4.2   

391 Sat .147 5.3 .175 6.3 .158 5.7 .181 6.5 .175 6.3 .181 6.5 

391 Sun .158 5.7 .169 6.1 .139 5.0 .175 6.3 .156 5.6 .147 5.3 

395 Sat .089 3.2   .092 3.3   .083 3.0   

395 Sun .092 3.3   .081 2.9   .092 3.3   

Non-
Minority 
Routes               

202x .050 1.8 .044 1.6 .044 1.6 .039 1.4 .047 1.7 .125 4.5 

 

Vehicle Headway 

  
  
  

Frequency 
 (in minutes)   

Route Description Minority Peak Off Peak Hours of Service 

Express Route         

200x 
(vehicle 

headway 
exception 

#4) 

Martinez / Pittsburg Yes 60 60 6:20 a.m. – 6:04 p.m. 

201x 
(vehicle 

headway 
exception 

#4) 

Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Concord BART 

Yes 30 60 5:39 a.m. – 7:41 p.m. 

202x 
Brentwood Park & Ride / 
Los Medanos College 
Brentwood 

No 
2 trips 
during 
peak 

1 trip 
during 
peak 

7:31 a.m. - 5:24 p.m. 

300x 
Brentwood Park & Ride / 
Antioch BART 

Yes 15 30 3:59 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 

  
  

Weekday Routes         

380 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Antioch BART 

Yes 30 60 3:51 a.m. – 11:30 p.m. 

381 
Pittsburg Marina / Los 
Medanos College 

Yes 15 30 7:00 a.m. - 6:20 p.m. 

383 
Blue Goose Park / 
Antioch BART 

Yes 60 60 5:08 a.m. - 6:49 p.m. 

384 
Brentwood Park & Ride / 
Antioch BART 

Yes 60 60 5:34 a.m. - 8:07 p.m. 

7a Attachment 1



 

53 

385 
Antioch BART / 
Brentwood Park & Ride 

Yes 60 60 6:09 a.m. - 8:14 p.m. 

387 
Antioch BART / 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 

Yes 30 60 4:43 a.m. - 12:16 a.m. 

388 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Kaiser Antioch Medical 
Center 

Yes 30 60 4:59 a.m. - 11:45 p.m. 

389 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Bay Point 

Yes 60 60 6:36 a.m. – 4:21 p.m. 

390 
(vehicle 

headway 
exception 

#1) 

Antioch BART / 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 

Yes 30 60 4:39 a.m. – 8:31 p.m. 

391 
Brentwood Park & Ride / 
Pittsburg Center BART 

Yes 30 60 4:03 a.m. - 1:28 a.m. 

  
  

School Day Routes         

379 
(vehicle 

headway 
exception 

#6) 

Antioch BART / Kaiser 
Antioch Medical Center 

Yes 
1 trip 
each 
peak 

N/A 7:51 a.m. - 3:50 p.m. 

  
  

Saturday and Sunday/Holiday 
Routes 

      

380 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Antioch BART 

Yes 60 60 5:49 a.m. – 12:31 a.m. 

381 
Pittsburg Marina / Los 
Medanos College 

Yes 60 60 7:00 a.m. – 10:48 p.m. 

388 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Kaiser Antioch Medical 
Center 

Yes 60 60 7:33 a.m. - 12:27 a.m. 

389 
Pittsburg-Bay Point BART 
/ Bay Point 

Yes 60 60 7:00 a.m. – 10:39 p.m. 

391 
Brentwood Park & Ride / 
Pittsburg Center BART 

Yes 60 60 6:24 a.m. – 9:45 p.m. 

395 
Streets of Brentwood / 
Antioch BART 

Yes 60 60 9:22 a.m. – 7:49 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

54 

On-Time Performance (by individual route) 

FY22-23 Annual Totals Minority 

 
Route Timepoints # %    

200x 

% Early 242 2.58 

Yes 

 

% On Time 7,542 80.39  

% Late 1,282 13.66  

% Very Late 316 3.37  

201x 

% Early 118 0.64 

Yes 

 

% On Time 15,931 85.92  

% Late 2,053 11.07  

% Very Late 439 2.37  

202x 

% Early 10 0.72 

No 

 

% On Time 1,202 86.85  

% Late 140 10.12  

% Very Late 32 2.31  

300x 

% Early 139 0.44 

Yes 

 

% On Time 27,862 87.37  

% Late 3,390 10.63  

% Very Late 498 1.56  

379 

% Early 2 0.44 

Yes 

 

% On Time 295 64.41  

% Late 141 30.79  

% Very Late 20 4.37  

380 

% Early 1,440 1.32 

Yes 

 

% On Time 87,024 80.07  

% Late 16,214 14.92  

% Very Late 4,005 3.69  

381 

% Early 117 0.60 

Yes 

 

% On Time 17,472 90.30  

% Late 1,503 7.77  

% Very Late 257 1.33  

383 

% Early 100 0.58 

Yes 

 

% On Time 14,549 84.09  

% Late 2,302 13.31  

% Very Late 350 2.02  

384 

% Early 43 0.37 

Yes 

 

% On Time 10,136 86.30  

% Late 1,286 10.95  

% Very Late 280 2.38  

7a Attachment 1



 

55 

385 

% Early 96 0.52 

Yes 

 

% On Time 15,063 81.60  

% Late 2,834 15.35  

% Very Late 466 2.52  

387 

% Early 859 14.87 

Yes 

 

% On Time 38,529 83.86  

% Late 5,273 11.48  

% Very Late 1,281 2.79  

388 

% Early 1,162 1.49 

Yes 

 

% On Time 58,671 75.12  

% Late 14,742 18.87  

% Very Late 3,529 4.52  

389 

% Early 176 1.58 

Yes 

 

% On Time 10,021 89.98  

% Late 805 7.23  

% Very Late 135 1.21  

390 

% Early 137 1.42 

Yes 

 

% On Time 7,451 77.13  

% Late 1,855 19.20  

% Very Late 217 2.25  

391 

% Early 333 0.59 

Yes 

 

% On Time 41,859 74.25  

% Late 12,303 21.82  

% Very Late 1,880 3.33  

709* 

% Early 0 0.00 

Yes 

 

% On Time 291 63.40  

% Late 159 34.64  

% Very Late 9 1.96  

395 

% Early 18 0.49 

Yes 

 

% On Time 2,754 75.43  

% Late 695 19.04  

% Very Late 184 5.04  

  

% Early 4,992 1.13 % Early  

% On Time 356,652 80.60 % On Time  

% Late 66,977 15.14 % Late  

% Very Late 13,898 3.14 % Very Late  

*BART early bird service 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

56 

Service Availability 

Census Tracts 
Census Tracts with 
60 Min Headways 

Census Tracts with 
30 Min Headways 

during Peak 
Periods 

Census Tracts with 
60 Min Headways 

on 
Weekends/Holidays 

63 63 47 49 

% Meet Criteria 100% 74.60 77.78 

 

Tract # 
Hourly 

30m 
Peak 

60m 
Wknd/Hol 

3020.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3020.06 Yes Yes Yes 

3020.07 Yes Yes Yes 

3020.09 Yes Yes Yes 

3020.13 Yes Yes Yes 

3020.14 Yes No No 

3031.04 Yes Yes Yes 

3031.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3031.06 Yes Yes Yes 

3031.07 Yes Yes Yes 

3032.02 Yes No Yes 

3032.04 Yes No Yes 

3032.06 Yes No No 

3032.07 Yes Yes Yes 

3032.08 Yes No Yes 

3032.09 Yes No Yes 

3032.10 Yes No No 

3032.11 Yes No No 

3040.01 Yes No No 

3050.00 Yes Yes Yes 
3060.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3060.03 Yes Yes Yes 

3060.04 Yes Yes Yes 

3071.01 Yes Yes Yes 

3071.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3072.01 Yes Yes Yes 

3072.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3072.04 Yes Yes Yes 

3072.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3080.01 Yes Yes Yes 

3080.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3090.00 Yes Yes Yes 

3100.00 Yes Yes Yes 

7a Attachment 1



 

57 

Tract # Hourly 
30m 
Peak 

60m 
Wknd/Hol 

3110.00 Yes Yes Yes 

3120.00 Yes Yes Yes 

3131.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3131.04 Yes Yes Yes 

3131.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3132.03 Yes Yes Yes 

3132.04 Yes Yes Yes 

3132.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3132.06 Yes Yes Yes 

3141.02 Yes Yes Yes 

3141.03 Yes Yes Yes 

3141.05 Yes Yes Yes 

3141.06 Yes Yes Yes 

3142.00 Yes No Yes 

3150.00 Yes No No 

3160.00 Yes No No 

3170.00 Yes No No 

3180.00 Yes No No 

3200.04 Yes No No 

3211.01 Yes No No 

3280.00 Yes Yes No 

3310.00 Yes Yes No 

3551.09 Yes Yes Yes 

3551.10 Yes Yes Yes 

3551.11 Yes Yes Yes 

3551.18 Yes Yes Yes 

3551.19 Yes Yes Yes 

3551.20 Yes Yes Yes 

3552.01 Yes Yes Yes 

3552.02 Yes Yes No 

Count 63 47 49 

% 100.00 74.60 77.78 

    

    
 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

58 

 

 

Distribution of Transit Amenities 

ECCTA has the following amenities system-wide: 

Amenity 

B
e

n
ch

 

Sh
e

lt
e

r 

Tr
as

h
 C

an
 

260 91 132 

 

Total of amenities: 483 

Total system directional route miles: 295.62 

Amenity per directional route mile: 1.63 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

59 

 

2020 Census Tract Map for Contra Costa County  

 

Conclusions 

ECCTA is aware that it is not meeting the service standard for on-time performance.  As a solution for 
this deficiency in on-time performance, ECCTA will be working with a consultant on a comprehensive 
operational analysis.  ECCTA has issued the RFP and anticipates awarding the contract in February 2024.  
ECCTA is confident the comprehensive operational analysis will improve on-time performance as 
ECCTA’s existing services and how the services are functioning will be reviewed to explore opportunities 
to increase ridership, enhance service efficiency and increase cost effectiveness. 
 
ECCTA is also aware that it is not meeting the service standard for vehicle load.  ECCTA’s ridership is 

below the ridership level prior to the start of the pandemic. ECCTA’s planned comprehensive 

operational analysis will provide ECCTA with additional information on how to re-configure the system 

to build ridership.  As part of the process for the comprehensive operational analysis,  service standards, 

productivity guidelines, and objectives, measures and standards will be re-evaluated.  

ECCTA is meeting its service standard/policy for vehicle headway, service availability, distribution of 

transit amenities, and vehicle assignments. 

7a Attachment 1



 

60 

Major Service Change Policy 

The Major Service Change Policy was developed pursuant to the FTA Title VI Circular 4702.1B, following 

a public participation process, and adopted by the ECCTA Board of Directors on May 16, 2016.  Following 

a public participation process, a minor update was made to the Major Service Change Policy to reflect 

the length of time the Title VI Circular allows for experimental or emergency service changes and fare 

changes, and was approved at the February 26, 2020 ECCTA Board of Directors meeting.  The February 

26, 2020 Board Agenda and associated resolution are located in Appendix F. 

For ECCTA’s public participation process, the public is notified of a public meeting or a public hearing.  

For individuals unable to attend the public meeting or public hearing, ECCTA’s website 

(www.TriDeltaTransit.com) communicates information about the Major Service Change Policy.  

Individuals are able to comment by email, telephone, mail, or in-person.   

Major Service Change Policy 

ECCTA is committed to meeting the public transit needs of East County residents. To ensure this, ECCTA 

will provide an opportunity for a public hearing prior to making a final decision on any increase to the 

basic fare structure or any major service change. 

The following defines a major service change or fare change, with exceptions also noted. 

1. A transit route is added or eliminated; or 

2. A reduction or increase of 25 percent or more in total vehicle revenue miles in service on 

any specific route over a one month period; or 

3. A change in the routing of a bus route, when it is in service that alters 40 percent or more of 

the route's path. 

Exceptions to the "major service change" include the following. 

• Standard seasonal variations in service. 

• Experimental or emergency fare changes may be instituted for six months or less without an 

equity analysis being completed; Experimental or emergency service changes may be 

instituted for twelve months or less without an equity analysis being completed.  

• Changes to a route with productivity that is fifty percent or below 18 passengers per revenue 

hour (Tri Delta Transit productivity standard) in a typical service day are not considered 

"major," unless service on that route is eliminated completely on any such day.   Productivity 

refers to the number of passengers carried per revenue hour or per trip. 

• Restoration of service previously eliminated due to budget constraints, provided the service 

runs on the same route as it had prior to its elimination, subject to minor deviations that do 

not exceed the requirements of (1), (2), or (3) above. 

 

  

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/


 

61 

Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy 

The Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy was developed pursuant to the FTA Title VI 

Circular 4702.1B, following a public participation process, and adopted by the ECCTA Board of Directors 

on April 22, 2015.  At the February 26, 2020 ECCTA Board of Directors meeting, the existing approved 

Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy was re-affirmed.  Appendix F includes the 

February 26, 2020 Board Agenda and associated resolution. 

For ECCTA’s public participation process, the public is notified of a public meeting or a public hearing.  

For individuals unable to attend the public meeting or public hearing, ECCTA’s website 

(www.TriDeltaTransit.com) communicates information about the Disparate Impact and 

Disproportionate Burden Policy.  Individuals are able to comment by email, telephone, mail, or in-

person.   

The purpose of the Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy is to define when impacts of a 

major service change or a fare change result in disparate impacts or disproportionate burdens on 

protected populations or riders, defined as minority or low-income populations or riders.  A finding of 

disparate impact or disproportionate burden would indicate to ECCTA that it may need to take 

additional steps before implementing any major service change or fare change to avoid, minimize or 

mitigate the disparate impact or disproportionate burden. 

The policy defines a disparate impact as a neutral policy or practice that disproportionately and 

adversely affects members of a group identified by race, color, or national origin. Further the policy 

defines a disproportionate burden as a neutral policy or practice that disproportionately and adversely 

affects low-income populations. 

There are two sources of data for demographic analysis of proposed changes: U.S. Census data and 

ECCTA on-board passenger survey data.  When ECCTA uses on-board passenger survey data to analyze 

potential impacts, the ridership of the affected route(s) will be compared to the entire ridership of the 

fixed route system.  When no passenger survey data is available, ECCTA will rely on U.S. Census data. 

Threshold for Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden 

The policy provides a process and threshold for determining if a disparate impact or disproportionate 

burden has resulted in a service change. In assessing disparate impact and disproportionate burden, 

ECCTA determines adverse impact based on a threshold that compares benefits and adverse impacts 

between protected and non-protected populations. The following definitions apply to determine if a 

disparate impact or disproportionate burden may exist. 

1. For adverse effects or service decreases, a disparate impact or disproportionate burden will 
occur when the protected population impacted by service decreases is greater than 10 
percentage points above the percentage of the protected population system wide. 
 

7a Attachment 1

http://www.trideltatransit.com/


 

62 

2. For benefits or service increases, a disparate impact or disproportionate burden will occur 
when the protected population impacted by service benefits is less than 10 percentage points 
below the percentage of the protected population system wide. 

 
 

The following is an example of ECCTA’s disparate impact or disproportionate burden analysis: 

In this example 71.6 percent of the population that would be impacted by two service decreases are 

classified as minority, while 37.3 percent of the population are classified as low-income. The system-

wide average of minority populations is 68.2 percent, while the system-wide average of low-income 

populations is 31.8 percent. 

In this example, no disparate impact or disproportionate burden is considered to exist, as neither of the 

differences between the system-wide percentages and the protected class percentages equals more 

than ten (10) percent. 

If a disparate impact and/or a disproportionate burden are found when considering a fare change or a 

major service change, ECCTA will take steps to avoid, minimize, or mitigate these impacts. If, however, 

ECCTA is unable to reduce these impacts in any way, pursuant to FTA Circular 4702.1B, ECCTA will be 

able to show that it has substantial legitimate justification for the proposed change and that there are 

no alternatives serving the same legitimate objectives that would have less of an impact on the 

protected classes involved. 

  

Average Riders Percent Minority Average Minority Riders

Line A (route eliminated) 800 70.0% 560

Line B (frequency reduced) 950 73.0% 694

Total 1750 71.6% 1254

Percent Low-Income Average Low-Income Riders

40% 320

35% 333

37.3% 653

System-wide Average 68.2% 31.8%

Difference 3.4% 5.5%

Greater than 10%? NO NO

 

7a Attachment 1



 

63 

Service and Fare Equity Analyses 

ECCTA uses the policies in the Title VI Program and the most recent U.S. Census data and on-board 

passenger survey data to monitor its system and conduct analyses of proposed fare and service changes. 

Since the previous Title VI Program submission in 2021, ECCTA conducted a Bus Route Evaluation and 

Redesign Service and Fare Equity Analysis.  ECCTA also conducted a COVID-19 Temporary Service 

Changes Service Equity Analysis. 

Service and Fare Equity Analysis 

• Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign Service and Fare Equity Analysis 

The service and fare equity analysis for the Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign is located in 

Appendix A.  ECCTA conducted a service and fare equity analysis to ensure that the proposed bus 

route redesign did not result in a disparate impact on the basis of race, ethnicity, or national origin, 

or a disproportionate burden on low-income households. 

 

Based on ECCTA’s service equity analysis, the proposed bus route redesign did not have a disparate 

impact on minority riders or place a disproportionate burden on low-income riders.  The fare 

equity analysis concluded that the transition to the new fare structure did not result in a disparate 

impact to minority passengers or a disproportionate burden to low-income passengers.   

• COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes Service Equity Analysis 

On April 19, 2020 ECCTA implemented changes to service in response to changing travel patterns 

and significantly reduced staffing levels due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Since April 19, 2020, ECCTA 

brought back service when resources allowed and temporarily restored full service on July 4, 2021.  

With emergency related temporary transit service changes still in effect twelve months after service 

reductions were introduced in April 2020, ECCTA conducted a service equity analysis of its COVID-19 

temporary service changes as of April 2021 to be responsive to the FTA’s requirement that changes 

in effect longer than twelve months be subject to such an analysis. 

 

The COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes Service Equity Analysis is located in Appendix B.  A service 

equity analysis was conducted to ensure that COVID-19 temporary service changes did not result in 

a disparate impact on the basis of race, ethnicity, or national origin, or a disproportionate burden on 

low-income households.  

Based on ECCTA’s service equity analysis, the COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes did not place a 

disproportionate burden on low-income riders or a disparate impact on minority riders. 

 

• Paratransit Mobile Fare Payment Type Elimination- Fare Equity Analysis 

ECCTA conducted a fare equity analysis to evaluate the effects of the paratransit mobile fare 

payment elimination and to determine if the change created a Disparate Impact on minority 

paratransit passengers or a Disproportionate Burden on low-income paratransit passengers. 

7a Attachment 1



 

64 

Based on the fare equity analysis, ECCTA determined that elimination of the ECCTA Mobile Ticket 
App did not create a Disparate Impact on minority paratransit passengers, but did create a 
Disproportionate Burden on low-income paratransit passengers.  ECCTA performed additional 
outreach to paratransit Mobile Ticket App customers to mitigate the Disproportionate Burden. 
 
The fare equity analysis for the Paratransit Mobile Fare Payment Type Elimination is located in 
Appendix C. 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

65 

Demographic and Service Profile Maps  

Graphic depictions, via Remix Title VI software, of the demographics of ECCTA’s service area with 

overlays pertaining to minority, poverty, and LEP populations within ECCTA’s service area can be found 

on pages 58 through 60. Remix is a proprietary geospatial data analysis that uses Geographic 

Information System (GIS) mapping software customized for ECCTA. Remix uses a fixed set of census 

block groups from a Shapefile ECCTA provided to Remix. 

Map 1: Base Map 
Map 1 is a base map of ECCTA’s service area that overlays census blocks depicting minority populations 

with transit routes, bus stops, and bus shelters displayed.  Map 1 data is from Remix.   

 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

66 

Map 2: Minority Population 
Map 2 shows the census blocks where the percentage of the total minority population residing in these 

areas exceeds the average percentage of minority populations in the service area as a whole.  The map 

also shows all transit routes, bus stops and bus shelters. Map 2 data is from Remix.   

 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

67 

 

Map 3: Low-Income Population 
Map 3 is similar to Map 2, but instead of portraying the minority demographics of the ECCTA service 

area, it shows the census blocks where the percentage of the total low-income population residing in 

these areas exceeds the average percentage of low-income populations for the service area as a whole. 

The map also shows all transit routes, bus stops and bus shelters.  “Low-income” is defined as a 

household income of less than 200% the federal poverty level. Map 3 data is from Remix.   

 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

68 

Demographics and Travel Patterns of ECCTA Passengers 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) delayed 

performing on-board passenger surveys for transit agencies within its jurisdiction for two years, which 

required MTC to push the schedule for transit agency on-board passenger surveys further out.  MTC 

decided to perform a high-level survey to re-baseline ridership trip and demographics of the region’s 

transit agencies with a Snapshot Survey from the Fall of 2023 to the Spring of 2024.  ECCTA is 

participating in the Snapshot Survey.  Because MTC is two years behind in performing on-board 

passenger surveys for transit agencies within its jurisdiction, MTC plans to perform ECCTA’s next Title VI 

on-board passenger survey in 2027.  Therefore, ECCTA is using data from the most recent on-board 

passenger survey conducted by MTC in the Spring of 2019.   

 

The survey was distributed on all ECCTA routes and was weighted to reflect daily ridership levels.  

Passengers were selected for participation using a random sampling function built into the survey 

programming and passenger responses were captured in real time. The customer was able to select 

their language choice for the survey and Spanish speaking interviewers were also available to administer 

surveys.   

 

Per Title VI regulations, the survey collected information on the race, color, national origin, English 

proficiency, language spoken at home, household income and travel patterns of passengers to develop a 

demographic profile.  The survey also collected demographic information on fare usage by fare type 

amongst minority users and low-income users, in order to assist with fare equity analysis. 

Transit Trip Characteristics  
The following bullets describe Tri Delta Transit passengers’ transit trips:  
Weekday  

• 35% of all weekday passengers’ trips surveyed were home-to-work or work-to-home trips. Half of all 
transit passenger trips (55.3%) surveyed were either home-to-other (non-work) or other-to-home 
(non-work). 10% of all transit passengers’ trips were non-home-based type trips.  

• 91% of transit passengers responding to the survey reported walking to access transit. About 2% 
reported personal bike to transit. 6% reported driving alone or being dropped off by someone – not 
a service. 

• More than 80% of all weekday passengers had trips that did not require any transfers on any system 
routes to complete their one-way trip. About 16% of passengers required a one or two system 
transfer. Transfer percentages were based on the unlinked expansion. 

• Majority of weekday passengers (84.5%) paid the adult fare for their one-way trip. About 8% of 
weekday passengers paid for the senior fare.  

 
Weekend 

• 39% of all weekend passengers’ trips surveyed on the weekend routes were home-to-work or work-
to-home trips. Half of all transit passenger trips (56.8%) surveyed were either home-to-other (non-
work) or other-to-home (non-work). Less than 5% of all transit passengers’ trips were non-home-
based type trips.  

7a Attachment 1



 

69 

• Most weekend passengers reported walking to access transit (96.1%). About 2% reported personal 
bike to transit. 

• Most weekend passengers had trips that did not require any transfers on any system routes to 
complete their one-way trip (95.8%). Transfer percentages were based on the unlinked expansion. 

• Most weekend passengers (92.8%) paid the adult fare for their one-way trip. About 5% of weekend 
passengers paid for the senior fare.  

 
 
Transit Passenger Profile 
The following bullets describe Tri Delta Transit passengers’ demographics:  
Weekday  

• Nearly 60% of weekday passengers are employed. 

• 70% of weekday passengers are currently not a student. About one-fifth of passengers (18.2%) are 
either full- or part-time college/university students.  

• Nearly two-thirds of weekday passengers (65.7%) are between 18 and 50 years of age, with 43% 
being between 18 and 34 years of age. 

• The race/ethnicity of weekday passengers are: 39.3% Black/African American, 27.9% 
Latino/Hispanic, 27.8% White, 5.9% Asian, 2.8% American Indian/Alaska Native, 2% Native 
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander and 1.4% “Other”. 

• More than one-third of weekday passengers report an annual household income below $25,000 
(37%) and nearly half of passengers (48.5%) reported an annual household income of between 
$25,000 and $75,000. 

 
Weekend  

• Nearly two-thirds of weekend passengers (65.2%) are employed. 

• Most weekend passengers are currently not a student (84.7%).  

• Over half of weekend passengers (55.5%) indicated their age is between 18-34. 43% of weekend 
passengers are 35 or over. 

• The race/ethnicity of weekend passengers are: 38.2% Latino/Hispanic, 32.1% Black/African 
American, 25.1% White, 4.9% Asian, 1.2% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 1% American 
Indian/Alaska Native and 0.7% “Other”. 

• More than one-third of weekend passengers report an annual household income below $25,000 
(39.3%) and half of passengers (52.1%) reported an annual household income of between $25,000 
and $75,000. 
 

The 2019 on-board passenger survey is located in Appendix G. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

70 

Appendix A- Bus Route Evaluation and Redesign Service and Fare Equity 

Analysis 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

71 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

72 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

73 

7a Attachment 1



 

74 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

75 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

76 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

77 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

78 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

79 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

80 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

81 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

82 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

83 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

84 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

85 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

86 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

87 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

88 

7a Attachment 1



 

89 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

90 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

91 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

92 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

93 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

94 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

95 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

96 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

97 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

98 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

99 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

100 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

101 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

102 

Appendix B- COVID-19 Temporary Service Changes Service Equity 

Analysis 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

103 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

104 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

105 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

106 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

107 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

108 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

109 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

110 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

111 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

112 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

113 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

114 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

115 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

116 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

117 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

118 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

119 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

120 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

121 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

122 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

123 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

124 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

125 

Appendix C- Paratransit Mobile Fare Payment Type Elimination-Fare 

Equity Analysis 
 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

126 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

127 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

128 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

129 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

130 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

131 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

132 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

133 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

134 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

135 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

136 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

137 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

138 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

139 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

140 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

141 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

142 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

143 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

144 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

145 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

146 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

147 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

148 

Appendix D- Board Approval of Service Standards and Policies 

7a Attachment 1



 

149 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

150 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

151 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

152 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

153 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

154 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

155 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

156 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

157 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

158 

Appendix E- Board Approval of Service Standards 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

159 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

160 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

161 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

162 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

163 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

164 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

165 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

166 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

167 

7a Attachment 1



 

168 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

169 

Appendix F- Board Approval of Major Service Change Policy/Disparate 

Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy 

7a Attachment 1



 

170 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

171 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

172 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

173 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

174 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

175 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

176 

Appendix G- On-Board Passenger Survey 
 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

177 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

178 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

179 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

180 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

181 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

182 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

183 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

184 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

185 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

186 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

187 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

188 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

189 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

190 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

191 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

192 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

193 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

194 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

195 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

196 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

197 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

198 

 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

199 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

200 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

201 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

202 

  

7a Attachment 1



 

203 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

204 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

205 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

206 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

207 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

208 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

209 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

210 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

211 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

212 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

213 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

214 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

215 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

216 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

217 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

218 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

219 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

220 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

221 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

222 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

223 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

224 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

225 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

226 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

227 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

228 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

229 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

230 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

231 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

232 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

233 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

234 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

235 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

236 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

237 

Appendix H- Board Approval of Title VI Program 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

238 

 

7a Attachment 1



 

TAB 3 
Agenda Item #7b 

ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditors Report   

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday January 24, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

   



Agenda Item #7b 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

Agenda Item: Independent Auditors Report – Agenda Item #7b 

Lead Staff: Agustin Diaz, Chief Financial Officer 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
Background  
ECCTA is required to have an annual certified fiscal audit conducted by an outside independent 
firm.  Per the contract between Brown Armstrong CPAs, an audit of the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2023, was conducted. 
 
Discussion 
In the opinion of the auditor, the basic financial statements of the Authority present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2023, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
The auditors did identify one deficiency in internal control that they consider to be material 
weaknesses. The Authority did not initially prepare a complete and accurate Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. Expenditures that occurred in the period covered by the 
Authority’s financial statements were not properly reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards in that period. 
 
In response, ECCTA will develop a reconciliation process to verify all expenditures incurred 
through the fiscal year at hand and paid with federal funding are included in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, with specific emphasis on accrued payables and receivables. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #7b 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Requested Action 
Adopt Resolution #240124B accepting the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 
30, 2023. 
 
Attached: 

1. ECCTA Financial Statements  
2. ECCTA Single Audit Report 
3. ECCTA Report to the Board  



 
 
 

RESOLUTION #240124B 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
Resolution #240124B accepts the EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
 
WHEREAS, ECCTA is required by PUC 99245 to have an annual certified fiscal audit 
conducted by an outside entity; and 
   
WHEREAS, the independent audit performed was designed to express an opinion on the FY 
2023 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2023 shows one 
deficiency in internal control regarding the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal 
Awards as identified in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, ECCTA will develop a reconciliation process to verify all expenditures incurred 
through the fiscal year at hand and paid with federal funding are included in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, with specific emphasis on accrued payables and receivables. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra 
Costa Transit Authority to adopt Resolution 240124B accepting the Independent Auditor’s 
Report for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 24th day of January 2024, by the following votes: 
 
 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 
 
_____________________________                     ________________________________ 

Lamar Thorpe, Chair        Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
AYES:  _____  
NOES:    _____ 
ABSENT:  _____ 
ABSTENTIONS: _____  



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
ANTIOCH, CALIFORNIA 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2023 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS 

7b Attachment 1



 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 Page 
 
Financial Section 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................................  1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  ...........................................................................................  4 
 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................................  9 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ....................................................  10 
Statement of Cash Flows ...................................................................................................................  11 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................................................  13 
 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Other Postemployment Benefits  
  (OPEB) Liability and Related Ratios ................................................................................................  27 
 
 
Other Report 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
  and on Compliance with the Transportation Development Act and Other  
  Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  
  With Government Auditing Standards ..............................................................................................  28 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .....................................................................................  30 
 
Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs ........................................................................  31 
 
 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 

To the Board of Directors  
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Antioch, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit 
Authority (the Authority), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Basic Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
In preparing the basic financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

2 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the basic financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
basic financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedule of changes in the net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 
liability and related ratios, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and 
schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

3 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
 
We have previously audited the Authority’s June 30, 2022, basic financial statements, and our report 
dated December 9, 2022, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited basic financial statements. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2022, is consistent in all material respects, with the audited basic financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 15, 
2024, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
  
 
 
 
 
 
Stockton, California 
January 15, 2024 

7b Attachment 1



 

4 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 
 
Introduction 
 
This discussion and analysis of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s (the Authority) financial 
performance provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for Fiscal Year 2023 (FY23) 
including comparisons to the prior year. This information should be considered in conjunction with the 
statements and notes contained in the Financial Section. 
 
Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Financial Section of this report presents the Authority’s basic financial statements including the basic 
financial statements and the notes to those financial statements. It also includes the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on those basic financial statements as well as certain grant activities. 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information about the assets and liabilities, and the difference 
between them as net position. The change in net position over time can indicate whether the Authority’s 
financial position is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position indicates how net position has 
changed during the fiscal year as well as compares operating revenues and operating expenses between 
the current and prior fiscal year. The operating revenues and expenses shown on page 6 are the financial 
activities related to the Authority’s mission of providing public transportation services in Eastern Contra 
Costa County. The revenues and expenses reported include fares and advertising revenues along with 
the cost of passenger services, administration and operation of those services, and the depreciation of 
capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not included within these categories are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports the inflow and outflow of cash at the Authority. Such activity is 
classified into three major components: 
 

• Cash flows from operating activities include transactions reported as components of operating 
income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

 
• Cash flows from noncapital financing activities include operating grant funding received as well as 

operating payments from third parties and non-operating items. 
 

• Cash flows from capital and related financing activities come from the procurement of capital 
assets and the proceeds of capital grants. 

 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Notes to Basic Financial Statements immediately following are intended to provide additional 
information that is essential for the reader to gain a full understanding of the information provided within 
the basic financial statements. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

5 

Analysis of the Authority’s Overall Financial Position 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022 (in thousands) 
 

2023 2022 Amount %

Current assets 11,428$         10,756$         672$              6.25%
Noncurrent assets 29,638           28,841           797                2.76%

Total assets 41,066$         39,597$         1,469$           3.71%

Current liabilities 9,515$           8,629$           886$              10.27%
Noncurrent liabilities 914                982                (68)                 -6.92%

Total liabilities 10,429           9,611             818                8.51%

Net position 30,637$         29,986$         651$              2.17%

Increase/Decrease
2023 to 2022

 
The Authority continues to recover from a post-pandemic transit landscape that has affected travel 
patterns and demand. Operating revenues remain lower than expected while operating expenses 
continue to rise at an abnormal rate. Non-current assets have increased due to the completion of a large 
capital project. Current liabilities are up over 10% due to an increase in grant advances that are restricted 
for upcoming capital projects. 
 
The 2.17% increase in the Authority’s net position in FY23 is due to the items described below. 
 

Revenue Vehicles 4,037,293$      
Facilities and Equipment 843,929           
Field Amenities and Fixtures 7,131               
Architectural and Engineering for Park and Ride Lot 143,113           

5,031,466$      

 
Revenue vehicles remain the major component of the Authority’s net capital assets and will do so going 
forward. Facilities and equipment expenditures are higher than usual due to the construction of the 
Oakley Park and Ride lot which was completed in FY23.  
 

7b Attachment 1



 

6 

Operating Activity 
 

FY23 Actual FY23 Budget Variance

Operating Revenues 2,116$           2,115$           1$                  
Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation 32,976           31,498           1,478             
Non-Operating Revenues 30,860           29,383           1,477             

Comparison to Budget
As of June 30, 2023 (in thousands)

 

FY23 Actual FY22 Actual Variance

Operating Revenues 2,116$           1,565$           551$              
Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation 32,976           26,603           6,373             
Non-Operating Revenues 30,860           25,038           5,822             

Prior Year Comparison
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022 (in thousands)

 
During FY23, the Authority budgeted for 253 thousand billable service hours and actually provided 264 
thousand billable hours of service through an operations contractor. The budget was created under the 
assumption that service would return to normal following the COVID-19 Pandemic and the increase would 
coincide with the opening of the new Oakley Park and Ride. More service hours were provided than 
anticipated as the Authority expanded service for its popular microtransit service.  
 
The Authority anticipated providing 1.2 million passenger trips in FY23 and the actual number of 
passenger trips was on par with the projection.  While declining ridership has been an industry wide trend 
for several years, the significant decrease caused by the shelter-in-place orders set forth in March 2020 
due to the coronavirus pandemic continue. 
 
A majority of the cost overages can be attributed to the rising cost of contracted operations and materials 
and supplies. 
 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

7 

Budget % Difference Actual Actual
June 30, 2023 Budget/Actual June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 % Change

PASSENGERS
Total DAR Trips Provided 226,204           -1.8%             230,425             146,051 57.8%
Average Weekday Ridership 838                  0.4%                    835                    524 59.4%
Average Sat Ridership 195                  -23.8% 256                  184                  39.1%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 100                  -16.7% 120                  86                    39.5%
Average Passengers/Hour
 (weekdays regular paratransit only) 2.1                   0.0% 2.1                   2.3                   -8.7%

CUSTOMER SERVICE
Ride Refusals/Day -                     0.0%                       -                        -  0.0%
Customer Complaints 0.30% 172.7% 0.11% 0.13% -15.38%
On Time Performance 90% -6.2% 96% 97% -1.0%

MAINTENANCE
Gallons of Fuel Consumed 171,911           12.4% 152,902           114,982           33.0%
Miles Between Preventable Accidents 200,000           53.1% 130,650           437,958           -70.2%
Miles Between Road Calls 100,000           -84.7% 652,931           437,564           49.2%

COST RATIOS
Farebox Recovery Ratio 9.01% 14.9% 7.84% 10.04% -21.9%
$/Gal Fuel 6.00$               18.6% 5.06$               4.60$               10.0%
Operating Cost/Passenger 36.61$             -2.8% 37.68$             39.49$             -4.6%
Operating Cost/Revenue Hour 107.28$           4.2% 103.00$           94.95$             8.5%
Operating Cost/Revenue Mile 7.39$               11.0% 6.66$               6.23$               6.9%

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SERVICE

ANNUAL COMPARISON

PARATRANSIT

 
 

Budget % Difference Actual Actual
June 30, 2023 Budget/Actual June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 % Change

PASSENGERS
Total FR Trips Provided 993,177           0.0%             992,717             889,091 11.7%
Average Weekday Ridership 3,335               -1.4%                 3,382                 2,965 14.1%
Average Sat Ridership 1,456               2.3% 1,423               1,204               18.2%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 1,297               14.6% 1,132               1,051               7.7%
Average Passengers/Hour 6.3                   1.6% 6.2                   6.3                   -1.6%

CUSTOMER SERVICE
Customer Complaints 0.30% 900.0% 0.03% 0.03% 0.0%
On Time Performance 90% 9.8% 82% 88% -6.8%

MAINTENANCE
Gallons of Fuel Consumed 558,064           4.4% 534,495           508,042           5.2%
Miles Between Preventable Accidents 100,000           21.5% 82,309             115,503           -28.7%
Miles Between Road Calls 50,000             -37.2% 79,654             49,149             62.1%

COST RATIOS
Farebox Recovery Ratio 4.28% 8.9% 3.93% 3.85% 2.1%
$/Gal Fuel 4.75$               9.7% 4.33$               4.16$               4.1%
Operating Cost/Passenger 23.38$             -6.4% 24.99$             23.43$             6.7%
Operating Cost/Revenue Hour 148.20$           -3.6% 153.75$           147.50$           4.2%
Operating Cost/Revenue Mile 11.60$             -5.5% 12.28$             11.72$             4.8%

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SERVICE
FIXED ROUTE

ANNUAL COMPARISON

 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates 
 
The continued uncertainty surrounding the duration of the COVID-19 Pandemic remains a concern for the 
Authority. Fare revenues and funding from state and local non-operating revenues continue to be less 
than expected while operating expenses are increasing. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

8 

Rising costs are always problematic when they do not coincide with increased revenues or levels of 
service. The rapidly rising costs of employee benefits such as health care, the provision of adequate 
retirement programs, and worker’s compensation are one of those costs. This affects not only Authority 
employees, but the employees of the purchased transportation contract provider as well because it 
impacts the amounts the Authority must pay for those contracts. The contractor’s fixed and variable 
hourly rate increases each year. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report was created to provide citizens, taxpayers, as well as the Authority’s customers and 
creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances. It is designed to demonstrate agency 
accountability for appropriate use of public funds that the Authority receives. Any questions or requests 
for additional information can be made to: 
 
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Attn: Chief Financial Officer 
801 Wilbur Avenue 
Antioch, CA 94590 
(925) 754-6622 
comment@eccta.org 
 
Copies of this report are available online: http://www.trideltatransit.com/public.aspx. 
 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7b Attachment 1



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements. 
 

9 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2023 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS) 
 
 

2023 2022
ASSETS

Current Assets
Unrestricted assets:

Cash and equivalents (Note 3) 2,472,999$      6,638,409$      
Operating assistance receivable 3,551,766        1,749,950        
Capital grants receivable 1,336,682        368,542           
Accounts receivable 134,057           56,256             
Maintenance inventories and supplies, at cost 837,998           727,186           
Prepaid expenses (Note 13) 7,973               54,358             
 
Total unrestricted assets 8,341,475        9,594,701        

Restricted LCTOP reserve cash and equivalents (Note 3):
LCTOP reserves 3,086,822        1,160,948        

Total restricted assets 3,086,822        1,160,948        

Total Current Assets 11,428,297      10,755,649      

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets (Note 4):

Non-depreciable 2,456,985        6,866,429        
Depreciable 27,181,014      21,974,889      

Total Noncurrent Assets 29,637,999      28,841,318      

TOTAL ASSETS 41,066,296$    39,596,967$    

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,403,982$      1,833,119$      
Accrued liabilities 481,269           521,251           
Due to other governments, TDA payable (Note 8) 3,405,822        4,994,064        
Grant advances (Note 9) 3,155,634        1,213,264        
Note payable - Due in less than one year (Note 12) 68,277             67,625             

Total Current Liabilities 9,514,984        8,629,323        

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net other postemployment benefit liability (Note 11) -                       -                       
Note payable - Due in more than one year (Note 12) 913,801           982,078           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 913,801           982,078           

Total Liabilities 10,428,785      9,611,401        

NET POSITION (Note 2G)

Net investment in capital assets 28,655,921      27,791,615      
Restricted for:

LCTOP operations 3,086,822        1,160,948        
Unrestricted (1,105,232)       1,033,003        

Total Net Position 30,637,511      29,985,566      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 41,066,296$    39,596,967$    
 

7b Attachment 1



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements. 
 

10 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS) 
 
 
 

2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger fares 1,654,377$      1,380,883$      
Other operating income 461,450           184,445           

Total Operating Revenues 2,115,827        1,565,328        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased transportation (Note 13) 19,503,544      15,163,485      
Materials and supplies 4,958,304        4,119,679        
Salaries and benefits 5,966,192        5,086,726        
Services 1,233,107        1,054,476        
Casualty and liability insurance 619,804           613,467           
Utilities 249,980           199,566           
Other 434,306           354,481           
Depreciation (Note 4) 4,234,785        3,958,615        
Interest expense 10,329             11,000             

Total Operating Expenses 37,210,351      30,561,495      

OPERATING LOSS (35,094,524)     (28,996,167)     

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State grant revenues 21,252,375      16,486,235      
Local grant revenues 5,030,856        4,986,192        
Non-transportation revenues 23,780             12,811             
Federal grant revenues 4,552,728        3,552,316        

Net Non-Operating Revenues, Before
Capital Contributions (Grants) 30,859,739      25,037,554      

Capital Contributions (Grants) 4,886,730        4,336,741        

Net Non-Operating Revenues and Capital
Contributions (Grants) 35,746,469      29,374,295      

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 651,945           378,128           

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 29,985,566      29,607,438      

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 30,637,511$    29,985,566$    

 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements. 
 

11 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS) 
 
 
 

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from passenger fares 1,654,377$      1,380,883$      
Cash received from operations - other 383,649           453,654           
Cash payments for purchased transportation (19,503,544)     (15,163,485)     
Payments to and on behalf of employees (6,625,978)       (5,697,756)       
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (6,379,590)       (6,022,950)       

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (30,471,086)     (25,049,654)     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal grants and reimbursements 4,552,728        3,552,316        
State and local operating grants 24,835,543      21,183,462      
Other noncapital revenue 23,780             12,811             

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 29,412,051      24,748,589      

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions 3,918,590        4,336,741        
Purchase of capital assets (5,031,466)       (4,474,480)       
Debt payment on long-term debt (67,625)            (66,954)            

Net Cash Flows Used in Capital and 
 Related Financing Activities (1,180,501)       (204,693)          

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,239,536)       (505,758)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 7,799,357        8,305,115        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5,559,821$      7,799,357$      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Unrestricted 2,472,999$      6,638,409$      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted 3,086,822        1,160,948        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5,559,821$      7,799,357$      

 
 
 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements. 
 

12 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS) 
 
 
 

2023 2022
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss (35,094,524)$   (28,996,167)$   
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to 
 Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 4,234,785        3,958,615        
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in receivables (77,801)            269,209           
(Increase) in inventory (110,812)          (36,601)            
Increase (Decrease) in prepaid expenses 46,385             (48,210)            
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable 570,863           (198,937)          
Increase (Decrease) in net OPEB liability -                       (66,067)            
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities (39,982)            68,504             

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (30,471,086)$   (25,049,654)$   

 
 
 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

13 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 

NOTE 1 – GENERAL 
 
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Authority), also known as Tri Delta Transit, was created 
August 3, 1976, under a joint exercise of powers agreement between the cities of Antioch, Pittsburg, and 
Brentwood and Contra Costa County, for the purpose of meeting the public transportation needs in 
Eastern Contra Costa County. The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors composed of 
representatives of the member jurisdictions. The joint exercise of powers agreement was amended on 
April 26, 2000, to include the recently incorporated City of Oakley. 
 
The Authority’s reporting entity includes all activities of the Authority. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Authority, which conform with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governments in the 
United States of America. 
 
A. Enterprise Fund Accounting 

 
The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund. This fund is a set of self-balancing accounts, 
which comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
net position, revenues, and expenses. 
 

B. Basis of Accounting 
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized. The Authority is 
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when they 
are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 
 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives or receives value without directly receiving 
or giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual 
basis of accounting, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year 
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 

C. Basis of Presentation 
 
The Authority’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting 
standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues 
of the Authority are charges to customers for farebox revenues. The Authority’s operating revenues, 
such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity 
of the Authority. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these 
definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

14 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
D. Cash Equivalents 

 
The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 

E. Risk Management 
 
The Authority requires its operations contractor, First Transit, Inc., to provide general liability 
coverage. First Transit, Inc., provides insurance with primary coverage of $1,000,000 in aggregate. In 
addition, the Authority is insured for premises and operational bodily injury and property damage up 
to a limit of $13,400,000, with a deductible of $10,000. 
 

F. Compensated Absences 
 
Full-time permanent employees are granted paid time off (PTO) benefits in varying amounts to 
specified maximums, depending on their tenure with the Authority. PTO accrues to employees to 
specified maximums after six months of service. The estimated current portion of the liability for PTO 
benefits is recorded as an expenditure with a corresponding liability. 
 

G. Net Position 
 
Net position is the excess of all the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net Position is divided into three classifications and 
applies only to net position as described below: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of net position which is represented by the 
current net book value of the Authority’s capital assets. 
 
Restricted describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 
which the Authority cannot unilaterally alter. The Authority’s restricted net position is for unexpended 
funds received from the Low Carbon Transit Operation Program (LCTOP). 
 
Unrestricted describes the portion of net position which is not restricted to use. 
 
The Authority will apply restricted resources before unrestricted resources when an expense is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 
 

H. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

I. Inventory 
 
Inventory is stated at cost.  Inventory held by the Authority is material and supplies that are consumed 
by the Authority and are not for resale purposes. 

7b Attachment 1



 

15 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
J.  Fair Value Measurements 

 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority 
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The fair value hierarchy categorizes 
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to 
which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market. 

 
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within Level 1 – that are observable 
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

 
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair 
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 
 

K. New Accounting Pronouncements – Implemented 
 
GASB Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations.  The requirements of this statement are 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021. There was no effect on the Authority’s 
accounting and financial reporting as a result of implementing this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements.  The requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2022.  There was no effect on the Authority’s accounting and financial reporting as a result of 
implementing this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022.  There was no 
effect on the Authority’s accounting and financial reporting as a result of implementing this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 99 – Omnibus 2022. The requirements of this statement are effective as 
follows: 
 
 The requirements related to the extension of the use of London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), 

accounting for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) distributions, disclosures of 
nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments, clarification of 
certain provisions in GASB Statement No. 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to 
GASB Statement No. 53 and GASB Statement No. 63 are effective upon issuance. 

 The requirements related to leases, public-private and public-public partnerships (PPPs), and 
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. 

 The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative 
instruments within the scope of GASB Statement No. 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. 

 
There was no effect on the Authority’s accounting and financial reporting as a result of implementing 
this standard. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

16 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

L. Future Accounting Pronouncements  
 
GASB Statement No. 100 – Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. The 
Authority will implement GASB Statement No. 100 if and when applicable. 
 
GASB Statement No. 101 – Compensated Absences. The requirements of this statement are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. 
Earlier application is encouraged. The Authority will implement GASB Statement No. 101 if and when 
applicable. 

 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a 
market value of 110% of the Authority’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market 
value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held 
in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority’s name and places the Authority 
ahead of general creditors of the institution. 
 
A. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The Authority’s unrestricted cash consists of time and demand deposits and petty cash held at the 
Authority’s administrative office. 
 
The Authority’s restricted assets, which consist of certificates of deposit with Bank of Agriculture and 
Commerce, are carried at fair value, as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their 
fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that 
fiscal year. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023: 
 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents:
Deposits in financial institutions  2,472,467$      
Cash on hand at Authority 532                  

Total unrestricted cash and equivalents 2,472,999        

Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
LCTOP reserve certificates of deposit 3,086,822        

Total restricted cash and equivalents 3,086,822        

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,559,821$      

 
B. Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an 
active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

17 

NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
B. Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued) 

 
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority had investments in Money Market accounts of 
$1,953,851 and Certificates of Deposit of $3,086,822, which are exempt from fair value 
measurements. 

 
C. LCTOP  
 

The LCTOP is one of several programs that are part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and 
Sustainable Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 2015 by Senate Bill 
862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emission and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged 
communities. The LCTOP was passed and adopted by the Authority in January 2016. The Authority 
is applying these funds to enhance service on Route 201 (Concord, California). 

 
D.  Custodian Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is 
the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in 
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the Authority’s investment policy 
do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
deposits or investments, other than the following provision made for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state and local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the government unit). The fair value of pledged 
securities must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by public agencies.  
 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the following disclosure be made with respect to custodial 
credit risk relating to deposits and investments: $7,252,761 of the Authority’s deposits with financial 
institutions were in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits and were held in 
collateralized accounts as of June 30, 2023.  

 
 
NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets of the Authority consist of land, transit and service vehicles, buildings and improvements, 
and equipment. Capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The 
Authority’s policy is to capitalize assets when the article of property being purchased has a useful life of 
more than one year. 
 
Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight-line method, which means the cost 
of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year 
until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has assigned the useful lives as follows: 
 

Building and improvements  5-30 years 
Transit vehicles  4-14 years 
Shop office and other equipment  5-10 years 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

18 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
A. Capital Assets Activity 
 

Capital assets activity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is as follows: 
 

Balance Reclassifications Balance
June 30, 2022 Acquisitions and Dispositions June 30, 2023

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 2,456,985$         -$                        -$                        2,456,985$         
Construction in Progress 4,409,444           551,053              (4,960,497)          -                          

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 6,866,429           551,053              (4,960,497)          2,456,985           

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 15,859,794         381,185              4,960,497           21,201,476         
Transit vehicles 38,840,877         4,037,293           -                          42,878,170         
Equipment 5,297,616           61,935                -                          5,359,551           

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 59,998,287         4,480,413           4,960,497           69,439,197         

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 10,408,258         646,140              -                          11,054,398         
Transit vehicles 22,999,667         3,363,617           -                          26,363,284         
Equipment 4,615,473           225,028              -                          4,840,501           

Total Accumulated Depreciation 38,023,398         4,234,785           -                          42,258,183         

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 21,974,889         245,628              4,960,497           27,181,014         

Total Capital Assets, Net 28,841,318$       796,681$            -$                        29,637,999$       

 
Depreciation expense was $4,234,785 as of June 30, 2023. 

 
B. Capital Contributions 
 

The Authority has grant contracts with the U.S. Department of Transportation through the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) for certain capital improvements. FTA funds are used to replace and 
improve the Authority’s buses and transit facilities. The Authority also has contracts under the 
Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA) and State Transit Assistance (STA) funds, which are 
used to match FTA grants or to fund transit improvement projects. Capital funding provided under 
government grants is considered earned as the allowable expenditures are incurred. 
 
Grants for capital assets acquisition and facility development and rehabilitation are reported in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, after non-operating revenues and 
expenses as capital contributions. 

 
 
NOTE 5 – OPERATING GRANTS 
 
The Authority records operating assistance grants as revenue when earned. 
 
A. TDA and STA Operating Assistance 
 

The Authority receives allocations of local transportation funds pursuant to the TDA and STA funds. 
These funds are generated within Contra Costa County and are allocated based on annual claims 
filed by the Authority and approved by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). Generally, 
the maximum annual TDA assistance the Authority can receive is limited to its actual operating costs 
(excluding depreciation) less fare revenues received and other local operating assistance (including 
interest income). 
 

7b Attachment 1



 

19 

NOTE 5 – OPERATING GRANTS (Continued) 
 
A. TDA and STA Operating Assistance (Continued) 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the maximum TDA operating assistance eligibility was 
$17,606,032. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the TDA operating funds had a receivable 
of $2,767,593 due to timing of receipt and a payable of $3,405,822, which represents the surplus of 
TDA operations grants received by the Authority that have not yet been spent (See Note 8). 

 
B. Inter-Operator Agreements 
 

The Authority receives funding through an arrangement with Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) for 
operating assistance applied to certain “feeder bus” services to the Pittsburg/Bay Point BART station. 
The Authority took over and incorporated such services from BART in 1997 (as detailed in the 
schedule below). 

 
C. Measure J 
 

On November 2, 2004, Contra Costa voters approved Measure J, which extended the half-percent 
cent local transportation sales tax first established by Measure C in 1988 for another 25 years. These 
revenues were to be used for the construction and improvement of state highways, the construction, 
maintenance, improvement, and operation of local streets, roads, and highways, and the 
construction, improvement, and operation of public transit systems including paratransit services. 
Specifically, ECCTA receives Measure J funding from the following Measure J Programs: 
 
- Program 14 - Bus Services 
- Program 15 - Transportation for Seniors & People with Disabilities 
- Program 16 - Express Bus 

 
D. Regional Measure 2 Funds 
 

On March 2, 2004, voters passed Regional Measure 2 (RM2), raising the toll on the seven State-
owned toll bridges in the San Francisco Bay Area by $1.00. This extra dollar is to fund various 
transportation projects within the region that have been determined to reduce congestion or to make 
improvements to travel in the toll bridge corridors, as identified in Senate Bill 916 (Chapter 715, 
Statutes of 2004). Specifically, RM2 establishes the Regional Traffic Relief Plan and identifies specific 
transit operating assistance and capital projects and programs eligible to receive RM2 funding. The 
Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) is responsible for the collection of the bridge tolls and MTC is 
responsible for administering the RM2 Program. As an eligible recipient the Authority was allocated 
RM2 funds of $461,609 and received $459,221 in RM2 funding during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023. The Authority utilized the RM2 funds as operating assistance on a specific, express bus route 
per the program’s requirements. 

 
E. Regional Measure 3 
 

Approved by voters, Regional Measure 3 raised tolls on the region's state-owned toll bridges by $1 
beginning January 1, 2019. Tolls were increased by another $1 in January 2022 with another $1 
increase set for January 2025. Toll revenues will be used to finance a $4.45 billion slate of highway 
and transit improvements in the toll bridge corridors and their approach routes. The Regional 
Measure faced legal challenges but they were ultimately dismissed by the California Supreme Court 
in January 2023. In order to disburse funds in a timely manner, MTC allocated ECCTA $239,613 in 
RM3 to be used for the same purposes as RM2 in FY2023. MTC is still in process of developing the 
framework for the eligibility of future RM3 operating funds. 

 

7b Attachment 1



20 

NOTE 5 – OPERATING GRANTS (Continued) 

Operating assistance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is summarized as follows: 

2023

Federal Transit Administration 4,552,728$      
Transportation Development Act 17,606,032      
State Transit Assistance 3,646,343        
Inter-Operator Agreements (BART) 2,387,642        
Measure J 1,941,992        
Regional Measure 2 461,609           
Regional Measure 3 239,613           

Total Operating Assistance 30,835,959$    

NOTE 6 – CAPITAL GRANTS 

The Authority has received grants from the FTA and grants of local transportation funds pursuant to the 
TDA for the purchase of buses, facility improvements, furniture and fixtures, and supporting equipment. 

Expenditures of capital grant funds are allocated based on annual claims filed by the Authority and 
approved by the MTC. The Authority’s management believes that the remaining grants available will be 
approved in full. These grants (excluding Measure J), less the related amortization, are included in capital 
contributions. 

The Authority’s capital contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows: 

2023

U.S. Department of Transportation grant awards 8,222,817$      
Less: funds used for operating costs (4,552,728)       

Subtotal 3,670,089        

State grants 1,180,485        
Other 36,156             

Total capital contributions 4,886,730$      

NOTE 7 – MEASURE J 

In November 2004, Contra Costa County voters approved Measure J which provided for the continuation 
of a County half-cent transportation sales tax for 25 more years beyond the original expiration date of 
2009 (Measure C). Measure J funding is administered by the Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
(CCTA). The Authority records Contra Costa County Measure J grants for operations and for capital 
projects as revenue and capital contributions, respectively, as received. 

The Authority is an eligible recipient of Measure J funds and received $2,082,092 in Measure J operating 
assistance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, of which $1,941,992 was applied to specific fixed 
route and para-transit bus services per CCTA’s approved program. The amount of $161,792 of Measure 
J funds for 2023 were “passed through” to the Central Contra Costa Transit Authority (CCCTA) according 
to an inter-operator agreement that all three agencies entered into to provide Countywide express bus 
services. 

7b Attachment 1



 

21 

NOTE 8 – TDA RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE 
 

The Authority applies for TDA funds for operating purposes prior to the start of each fiscal year. The 
application is based on the Authority’s annual budget and thus contains an estimate of the Authority’s 
annual operating expenditures and revenues for the next fiscal year. After completion of the annual audit, 
whereby any unapplied funds or funding shortfalls are determined, the Authority either returns TDA funds 
in excess of those used during the fiscal year or applies for additional TDA funding for the prior fiscal year 
to make up the shortfall. 
 
A TDA Operating Receivable represents the amount of TDA operations grants pending to be received by 
the Authority.  As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority was pending the amount of 
$2,767,593 from MTC. 
  
A TDA Payable represents the surplus of TDA operations grants received by the Authority that have not 
yet been spent. Such surpluses must be returned to the County Local Transportation Fund. The amount 
of TDA payable at year end is a provision that the Authority makes to return such TDA funds. At the end 
of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority owed the County Local Transportation Fund the 
amount of $3,405,822.  
 
 
NOTE 9 – GRANT ADVANCES 
 
The Authority receives allocations from other governmental agencies to fund transit operations and 
capital purchases. Allocations are considered earned when they are properly spent for operations or 
capital acquisitions. Allocations received but not earned are recorded as unearned revenues. The 
Authority had received the following allocations which are considered to be unearned revenue as of June 
30, 2023: 
 

2023

LCTOP 3,086,822$      
State of Good Repair (SGR) 68,812             

Total grant advances 3,155,634$      

 
 
NOTE 10 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
The Authority offers two retirement plans – a 401(a) and a 457(b) plan. Participation in the plans is 
optional.  
 
A. Employees’ Retirement Plan 
 

The Authority offers a 401(a) defined contribution pension plan, administered by the Financial 
Decision group, through Charles Schwab. All full-time employees are eligible for this voluntary 
program upon successful completion of his or her probation. In order to participate in this voluntary 
program, an employee must participate in the 457(b) deferred compensation plan (see Note 10B), 
and contribute a minimum of 4% of his or her gross salary, up to the federally allowed maximum 
amount of his or her gross compensation. 
 
The Authority makes contributions to the 401(a) plan for each participant depending on the 
participant’s years of service with the Authority as follows: 
 

Less than 10 years  12% of gross salary 
10-20 years  13% of gross salary 
20-30 years  14% of gross salary 
More than 30 years  15% of gross salary 

  

7b Attachment 1



 

22 

NOTE 10 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 
 
A. Employees’ Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 

Any changes to the plan and/or contribution requirements must be approved by the Authority’s Board 
of Directors. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority contributed $470,361 to the 
401(a) plan on behalf of its participants. 

 
B. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

The Authority’s employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority sponsored 
Deferred Compensation Plan, administered by Ameritas, created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. Under this plan, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of 
their compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made only at termination, 
retirement, death, or in an emergency as defined by the plan. Employees also have the option make 
contributions to a 457 Roth plan. With this plan, they will pay taxes upfront when contributions are 
made to the plan and will have the benefit of tax-free withdrawals when the time comes. 
 
The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for 
the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these 
plans are not the Authority’s property and are not subject to Authority control, they have been 
excluded from these financial statements. 
 

 
NOTE 11 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
  
A. General Information about the OPEB Plan 

 
Plan Description 
 
The Authority provides postretirement health care benefits at retirement to full time employees who 
have been an employee for at least 20 years and must be 62 years or older at retirement until they 
reach the age 65.  
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The Authority will pay the entire COBRA Kaiser Health Savings Account (HSA) plan premium for the 
retired employee and their eligible dependents until the retired employee reaches age 65, at which 
time they will qualify for Medicare. The Authority will pay the equivalent of the Kaiser HSA plan 
premium towards another health insurance policy selected by the employee in place of this plan. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
As of June 30, 2023, the benefit terms covered the following employees: 
 

Retirees and survivors currently receiving benefits 4                      
Active employees 33                    

Total 37                    

 
B. Net OPEB Liability 

 
The Authority’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, using the Alternative 
Measurement Method (AMM). This method is similar to an actuarial valuation, but with simplifications 
of several assumptions permitted per GASB guidelines.  
 

7b Attachment 1



 

23 

NOTE 11 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
  
B. Net OPEB Liability (Continued) 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2023

Age Adjustment Factor 2.120509

Average Retirement Age 68

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll

Bond Yield 3.69%

Discount Rate 3.69%

Participants valued Only current active employees, retired participants, and covered 
dependents are valued. No future entrants are considered in this 
valuation. 

Projected Salary Increases 4.00% per year

Mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables, with mortality 
improvement projected for 10 years.

Healthcare Cost Trend The cost trend numbers used were developed consistent with the Getzen 
model promulgated by the Society of Actuaries for use in long-term trend 
projection. The ACA excise tax will ultimately affect all plans. Due to the 
variability of the ACA excise tax plan, healthcare trends could raise an 
average of 0.5% or more in each year. 

 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.69%. For OPEB plans that are not 
prefunded and are paying for OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis, the discount rate is based on the 20-
year tax exempt municipal bond yield which was 3.46% as of June 30, 2023.  
 

7b Attachment 1



 

24 

NOTE 11 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
  
B. Net OPEB Liability (Continued) 

 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Change in 
Fiduciary Net 

Position
Net OPEB 

Liability

Balance at June 30, 2022 -$                     -$                     -$                     

Changes in the Year:
Service Cost -                       -                       -                       
Interest -                       -                       -                       
Effects of Economic/Demographic Gains or Lo -                       -                       -                       
Effects of Assumptions Changes or Inputs -                       -                       -                       
Benefit Payments -                       -                       -                       
Employer Contributions -                       -                       -                       

Net Changes -                       -                       -                       

Balance at June 30, 2023 -$                     -$                     -$                     

Increase (Decrease)

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.69%) or one percentage 
point higher (4.69%), follows: 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.69% 3.69% 4.69%

Net OPEB Liability -$                     -$                     -$                     

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
 
As of June 30, 2023, the Authority’s healthcare cost trend rate baseline was: 
 

Medical Pharmacy Dental Vision

Year 1 4.70% 5.20% 3.50% 3.00%
Year 2 4.80% 4.80% 3.50% 3.00%
Year 3 4.70% 4.70% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 4 4.60% 4.60% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 5 4.50% 4.50% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 6 4.40% 4.40% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 7 4.30% 4.30% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 8 4.20% 4.20% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 9 4.20% 4.20% 3.00% 3.00%
Year 10+ 4.20% 4.20% 3.00% 3.00%

 

7b Attachment 1



 

25 

NOTE 11 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
  
B. Net OPEB Liability (Continued) 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
(Continued) 
 
The net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using Healthcare Cost Trend Rates that are one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than current healthcare cost trend rates, follows: 
 

1% Decrease Baseline Trend 1% Increase

Net OPEB Liability -$                     -$                     -$                     

 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority recognized an OPEB expense of $0. At June 
30, 2023, the Authority reported no deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB as the plan does not hold assets in a trust.  

 
 
NOTE 12 – NOTE PAYABLE 
 
On February 4, 2016, the Authority entered into an agreement with California Energy Resources 
Conservation and Development Commission (California Energy Resources) for $1,308,104, with a one 
percent (1% per annum) interest rate. The project consists of installing roof and parking structures 
mounted with photovoltaic (PV) panels at the Authority’s main office, located in Antioch, California. 
Principal and interest payments are payable semiannually with the first repayment due on December 22, 
2018, and final installment due on December 22, 2036. 
 
The following is a summary of the note payable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023: 
 

Original Issue 
Amount

Balance 
June 30, 2022 Additions Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2023

Due Within 
One Year

California Energy Resources 
 Loan Agreement 1,308,104$    1,049,703$    -$                  67,625$       982,078$       68,277$      

Total long-term debt 1,049,703$    -$                  67,625$       982,078$       68,277$      

  
The annual payment requirements to mature the loan outstanding at June 30, 2023, were as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 68,277$           9,677$             77,954$           
2025 68,987             8,967               77,954             
2026 69,679             8,275               77,954             
2027 70,377             7,576               77,953             
2028 71,065             6,889               77,954             

2029-2033 366,236           23,533             389,769           
2034-2037 267,457           5,380               272,837           

Total 982,078$         70,297$           1,052,375$      

 

7b Attachment 1



 

26 

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the 
Authority’s legal counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on 
the financial position of the Authority. 
 
The Authority participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited by 
the Authority’s independent auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and 
applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits; 
however, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of 
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The 
Authority expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
The Authority made a prepayment to Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) for a 10-year refundable electric 
option and will perform the construction services for the project using the loan proceeds. The option 
payment of $6,148 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is reported as a prepaid asset on the 
Statement of Net Position. 
 
Contractor 
 
The Authority has an agreement dated May 2, 2016, with First Transit, Inc., a private transit firm, to 
provide transportation management and operations services on behalf of the Authority through June 30, 
2023. Expenses recorded under this contract amounted to $18,519,168 for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023, and are recorded under purchased transportation and casualty and liability costs. The contracted 
with County Connection for their one seat pilot program and incurred $263,626 in expenses. The 
Authority is also contracted with Transit Network Companies (TNCs) Uber, Lyft, and United Taxi. 
Purchased Transportation Expense for these three TNCs amounted to $720,754. 
 
 
NOTE 14 – SENATE BILL 1 (SB 1) – STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 
 
The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, SB 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), signed by the 
Governor on April 28, 2017, includes a program that will provide additional revenues for transit 
infrastructure repair and service improvements. This investment in public transit will be referred to as the 
State of Good Repair (SGR) program. This program provides funding of approximately $105 million 
annually to the State Transit Assistant Account. These funds are to be made available for eligible transit 
maintenance, rehabilitation, and capital projects. 
  
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority received SGR funds of $64,621. As of June 30, 
2023, the Authority has a total of $68,812 unearned SGR revenue comprised of fiscal year 2023 SGR 
funds for Authority’s parking lot repairs. 
 
 
NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent events were evaluated through January 15, 2024, which is the date the basic financial 
statements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events with a material effect on the 
basic financial statements or note disclosures that took place after June 30, 2023.  

7b Attachment 1



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

7b Attachment 1



 

27 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT 

BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* 
 
 
 

Measurement Period June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost -$                     -$                     -$                     355,782$         
Interest on Total OPEB Liability -                       1,440               2,541               38,398             
Effect of Economic/Demographic 
 Gains or Losses -                       (67,507)            (43,574)            (596,797)          
Effects of Assumptions Changes or Inputs -                       -                       -                       -                       
Benefit Payments -                       -                       (18,862)            (27,203)            

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability -                       (66,067)            (59,895)            (229,820)          

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning -                       66,067             125,962           355,782           

Total OPEB Liability - Ending -$                     -$                     66,067$           125,962$         

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer -$                     -$                     18,862$           27,000$           
Benefit Payments -                       -                       (18,862)            (27,000)            

Net Change in OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position -                       -                       -                       -                       

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning -                       -                       -                       -                       

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Net OPEB Liability -$                     -$                     66,067$           125,962$         

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
 Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Covered Payroll 4,223,580$      3,383,440$      3,163,263$      2,975,409$      

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage 
 of Covered Payroll 0.00% 0.00% 2.09% 4.23%

 
 
 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
* When information is available, the required 10 years will be shown. The fiscal year ended June 30, 
2020, is the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 in accordance using the Alternative 
Measurement Method.  
  
  

7b Attachment 1



 

OTHER REPORT 

7b Attachment 1



 

28 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE  
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Antioch, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Eastern 
Contra Costa Transit Authority (the Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and 
related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 15, 2024. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001, that we consider to be a 
material weakness. 

7b Attachment 1



 

29 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. Our procedures included the applicable audit procedures contained in 
§6667 of Title 21 of California Code of Regulations and tests of compliance with the applicable provisions 
of the Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other audit matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards, the Transportation Development Act, and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission. 
 
The Authority’s Response to Findings 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Authority’s 
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, Board of Directors, others 
within the Authority, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties; however, this restriction is not 
intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 
 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stockton, California 
January 15, 2024 

7b Attachment 1



 

30 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 
Finding 2023-001 – Reporting of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
CONDITION 
 
The Authority did not initially prepare a complete and accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards. Expenditures occurred in the period covered by the Authority’s financial statements were not 
properly reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards in that period. 
 
CRITERIA 
 
2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) Section 200.502 requires the auditee to prepare an 
accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the period covered by the auditee’s financial 
statements. 
 
CAUSE OF CONDITION 
 
Inconsistent treatment of accruals at year-end resulted in misstatements on the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards. 
 
POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION 
 
The Authority’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was initially materially misstated and 
therefore not in compliance with Federal regulations. This noncompliance could impact the Authority’s 
eligibility to receive federal awards. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We recommend that the Authority develop a reconciliation process to verify all expenditures incurred 
through the fiscal year at hand and paid with federal funding are included in the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards, with specific emphasis on accrued payables and receivables. All worksheets that are 
currently used to track expenditures paid with Federal funding are properly reviewed at yearend and 
traced to inclusion on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The reconciliation process should be 
reviewed by an individual familiar with the general ledger and independent of the preparer. 
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
 
The Authority will develop a reconciliation and review process to ensure that all Federal expenditures and 
accrued Federal expenditures are included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

 

7b Attachment 1



 

31 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 
There were no prior year findings. 

7b Attachment 1



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA 
TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 
(UNIFORM GUIDANCE) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2023 

7b Attachment 2



 

i 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SINGLE AUDIT REPORT (UNIFORM GUIDANCE) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 Page 
 
Report 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major 
  Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance  
  Required by the Uniform Guidance ..................................................................................................  1 
 
 
Schedule 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ....................................................................................  4 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .....................................................................  5 
 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .....................................................................................  6 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings ..............................................................................  8 
 
 
 

7b Attachment 2



 

 

REPORT 

7b Attachment 2



 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR  
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL  

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 

 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Antioch, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s (Authority) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major 
federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The Authority’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 
 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;  and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under 
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance  
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Authority’s federal programs. 

7b Attachment 2



 

2 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on 
compliance about the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Authority’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

7b Attachment 2



 

3 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements.  We issued our report thereon dated January 15, 2024, which contained unmodified 
opinions on those financial statements.  Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on 
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.  The accompanying 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required 
by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
   
 
 
 
 
Stockton, California 
January 15, 2024 

7b Attachment 2



 

 

SCHEDULE 

7b Attachment 2



 

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
4 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 
 

Assistance
Listing 

Number

Pass-Through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number or Direct 

Grant Number
 Federal 

Expenditures 

 Passed-
Through To 

Subrecipients 

U.S. Department of Transportation /
Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Transit Formula Grants (Section 5307)

ECCTA  5307 - Oakley Park and Ride 20.507 CA-2017-164 464,122$        -$                    
ECCTA  5307 - Transit Bus Replacements 20.507 CA-2022-095 1,669,479       
ECCTA  5307 - Operating Assistance 20.507 CA-2022-096 4,336,009       -                      

Total Federal Transit Formula Grants (Section 5307) 6,469,610       -                      

Buses and Bus Facilities Formula, Competitive, and Low or No
Emissions Programs (Section 5339)

ECCTA  5339 - Transit Bus Replacements 20.526 CA-2022-095 1,008,128       -                      
ECCTA  5339 - Hydrogen Fueling Station 20.526 TBD 60,790            -                      

Passed Through Metropolitan Transportation Commission
ECCTA  5339 - Buses & Bus Facilities Replacements 20.526 CA-34-0032 450,307          -                      

Total Buses and Bus Facilities Formula, Competitive, and
Low or No Emissions Programs (Section 5339) 1,519,225       -                      

Total Federal Transit Cluster 7,988,835       -                      

Transit Services Programs Cluster
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310)

Passed Through California Department of Transportation
COVID-19 (Section 5310)
ECCTA  5310 -  ARPA Operating Assistance 20.513 CA-2022-052 43,805            -                      

Total Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities (Section 5310) 43,805            

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster 43,805            -                      

Other Programs
Metropolitan Transportation Planning (Section 5303)

Passed Through Metropolitan Transportation Commission
ECCTA  5303 - Short Range Transit Plan 20.505 TBD 17,263            -                      

Total Metropolitan Transportation Planning (Section 5303) 17,263            -                      

Formula Grants For Rural Areas (Section 5311)
Passed Through California Department of Transportation

ECCTA  5311 - Preventive Maintenance 20.509 CA-2022-055 75,180            
ECCTA  5311 - Preventive Maintenance 20.509 CA-2023-038 97,734            -                      

Total Formula Grants For Rural Areas (Section 5311) 172,914          -                      

Total U.S. Department of Transportation / FTA 8,222,817       -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 8,222,817$     -$                    

Federal Grantor/Office/Pass-Through Grantor/ 
Program or Cluster Title/Project Name

 
 

 
  

7b Attachment 2



 

5 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 
NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes expenditures of federal awards 
for the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Authority). 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied. All 
proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures of Federal 
Awards reported on the Schedule are recognized when incurred. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST ELECTION 
 
The Authority has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
 
 
 

7b Attachment 2



 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

7b Attachment 2



 

6 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 
I. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

 
Financial Statements  
     
1.  Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
     
2.  Internal control over financial reporting:     
     

a. Material weakness identified? X Yes  No 
     

b. Significant deficiencies identified      
  not considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes X No 
     

3.  Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?      Yes X No 
     
Federal Awards     
     
1.  Internal control over major federal programs:     
     

a. Material weakness identified?  Yes X No 
     

b. Significant deficiencies identified     
 not considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes X No 

     
2.  Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance  
 for major programs:  Unmodified   
     
3.  Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be     
 reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?  Yes X No 
 
4.  Identification of major programs: 
 

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster   
  
20.507/20.526 Federal Transit Cluster 
  

5.  Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and  
 Type B programs: 
 

  
$750,000 
 

 

6.  Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee under the Uniform       
 Guidance?  Yes X No  

 
 

7b Attachment 2



 

7 

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2023-001 – Reporting of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
CONDITION 
 
The Authority did not initially prepare a complete and accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards. Expenditures occurred in the period covered by the Authority’s financial statements were not 
properly reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards in that period. 
 
CRITERIA 
 
2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) Section 200.502 requires the auditee to prepare an 
accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the period covered by the auditee’s 
financial statements. 
 
CAUSE OF CONDITION 
 
Inconsistent treatment of accruals at year-end resulted in misstatements on the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION 
 
The Authority’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was initially materially misstated and 
therefore not in compliance with Federal regulations. This noncompliance could impact the Authority’s 
eligibility to receive federal awards. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We recommend that the Authority develop a reconciliation process to verify all expenditures incurred 
through the fiscal year at hand and paid with federal funding are included in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, with specific emphasis on accrued payables and receivables. All 
worksheets that are currently used to track expenditures paid with federal funding are properly 
reviewed at yearend and traced to inclusion on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The 
reconciliation process should be reviewed by an individual familiar with the general ledger and 
independent of the preparer. 
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
 
The Authority will develop a reconciliation and review process to ensure that all Federal expenditures 
and accrued Federal expenditures are included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

 
 
III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTION COSTS 
 

None reported. 

7b Attachment 2



 

8 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 
 

No findings in the prior fiscal year.  
 

7b Attachment 2



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

REPORTS TO THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2023 

7b Attachment 3



 

 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 Page 
 
I. Required Communication at the Conclusion of an Audit to the Board of Directors  
   in Accordance with Professional Standards (SAS 114) ............................................................  1 
 
II. Agreed Upon Conditions Report Designed to Increase Efficiency, Internal Controls,  
  and/or Financial Reporting (Management Letter) .......................................................................  5 
 
III. Schedule of Other Matters ...........................................................................................................  7 
 
IV. Current Year Status of Prior Year Other Matters ........................................................................  8 
 

7b Attachment 3



 

1 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATION AT THE CONCLUSION OF AN  
AUDIT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS (SAS 114) 
 
 
To the Board of Directors of  
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority  
Antioch, California 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (the 
Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated June 16, 2023.  Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.  
 
Significant Audit Matters 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies, to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of 
existing policies was not changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. We noted no transactions 
entered into by the Authority during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may 
differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements 
were: 
 
 Estimate of Depreciation: Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful lives 

determined by management. These lives have been determined by management based on the 
expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 4 to the basic financial statements. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

 Estimated Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability: Management’s estimate of the 
net OPEB liability is disclosed in Note 11 to the basic financial statements and is based on 
management’s estimates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

7b Attachment 3



 

2 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates used in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were related to the 
useful lives of capital assets and depreciation, net OPEB liability, and related deferred inflows of 
resources and deferred outflows of resources in Notes 4, and 11, respectively, of the basic financial 
statements. 
 
The financial statements disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.   
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. The material misstatements detected 
as a result of audit procedures were corrected by management and are presented in attached schedule of 
corrected adjusting journal entries. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated January 15, 2024. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each fiscal year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 
 
There was a material weakness that we have reported to management of the Authority described in the 
schedule of finding and questioned costs as item 2023-001. 
 
Other Matters 
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and schedule of 
changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios, which are required supplementary information that 
supplement the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary 
information and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary 
information. 

7b Attachment 3



 

3 

Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Board of Directors, 
and management of the Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties.   
 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stockton, California 
January 15, 2024 

7b Attachment 3



 

4 

Description Debit Credit

Corrected Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1

Receivables - Capital Grants Federal 267,155$         
Receivables - Operating Assistance Federal 97,734
Revenue - State Grants 97,734

Due to other governments, TDA payable 97,734
Revenue - Capital Contributions Grants 267,155
Revenue - Federal Grants 97,734

Total 462,623$         462,623$         

Accrue of capital grant and operating assistance revenue and receivable for federal expenditures 
occurred in FY2023.

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Corrected Adjusting Journal Entry Schedule

June 30, 2023

 
 

7b Attachment 3



 

5 

AGREED UPON CONDITIONS REPORT DESIGNED TO INCREASE 
EFFICIENCY, INTERNAL CONTROLS, AND/OR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

(MANAGEMENT LETTER) 
 
 
 

To the Board of Directors of 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Antioch, California 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit 
Authority (the Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In addition, 
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of 
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given 
these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Included in the Schedule of Other Matters are agreed upon conditions (AUC) and recommendations not 
meeting the above definitions that we believe are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and 
operating efficiencies. 
 
Management’s written responses included in this report have not been subjected to the audit procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. We will 
review the status of these recommendations during our next audit engagement. We have already 
discussed these recommendations with various Authority personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss 
these in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist 
you in implementing these recommendations.  

7b Attachment 3



 

6 

Restriction on Use 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, others 
within the Authority, and agencies and pass-through entities requiring compliance with Government 
Auditing Standards, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 

BROWN ARMSTRONG 
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stockton, California 
January 15, 2024 

7b Attachment 3



 

7 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 
 
AUC-2023-01: Information Technology (IT) – IT Strategic Plan 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of IT controls, we noted that the Authority does not currently have a strategic plan 
outlining its current and future IT projects.  
 
Criteria 
 
Governments should have an IT strategic plan detailing current and planned technology projects. A well-
developed IT strategic plan will help the Authority in budget planning and ensure that the Authority’s 
technology sustains and assists the entity in achieving its long-term goals. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Authority include an evaluation of IT plans and priorities in their discussion of the 
budget each year.  
 
Management Response 
 
The Authority has brought on board a part-time IT Specialist. The Authority will work with the IT Specialist 
on the development of an IT Strategic Plan. Due to the uncertainty of available funding and technology 
needs, in lieu of an IT strategic plan, the Authority will work with the IT Specialist to include an evaluation 
of IT plans and priorities in their discussion of the budget each year. 
 
 
AUC-2023-02: Capitalization Policy 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of procedures over capital assets, we reviewed a tools and equipment inventory listing 
of expenses which were not being reviewed for eligibility of being capitalized. We noticed the tools and 
equipment inventory list has not been updated or reviewed consistently and no regular inventory was 
being performed as the items were expensed.   
 
Criteria 
 
Assets with a life expectancy of more than one year or that will extend the useful life of other equipment 
should be capitalized and depreciated, to allocate the expense across the years of use and benefit 
associated with such asset.  While the policy in place is appropriate, there does not appear to be any 
formal procedures implemented to ensure all assets in use are being captured. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Authority create a formal capitalization policy to ensure capitalization of tools and 
equipment are also included.  We also recommend an actual inventory count of capital assets to be 
performed on a biennial basis to ensure obsolete assets are removed and assets in use are accounted 
for timely. 
 
Management Response 
 
The Authority will create a formal capitalization policy which will include the process for an actual 
inventory count of capital assets to be performed on a biennial basis to ensure obsolete assets are 
removed and assets in use are accounted for timely. The Authority required additional time to create a 
formal capitalization policy and to determine obsolete assets to be removed from the capital assets 
inventory. 

7b Attachment 3



 

8 

CURRENT YEAR STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS 
 

AUC-2022-01: Journal Entry Review and Approvals 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of journal entries, we noted that journal entries did not have approvals or evidence of 
review.  
 
Criteria 
 
Journal entries should be appropriately reviewed in order to ensure that there are proper controls and 
segregation of duties in place and to prevent management override of controls.  
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that all journal entries be reviewed by a separate individual (not the individual creating 
the entry) in order to prevent posting of errors or inappropriate journal entries and adjustments.  
 
Management Response 
 
A Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) has been created and now the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
reviews and approves ALL journal entries (JEs) entered by the Accounts Payable (AP)/Payroll Associate 
and Accounts Receivable (AR) Associate. The SOP now includes a listing of the regular journal entries to 
be made, who they were prepared by, and who reviewed/approved them to ensure proper controls and 
segregation of duties. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
AUC-2022-02: Information Technology (IT) – IT Strategic Plan 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of IT controls, we noted that the Authority does not currently have a strategic plan 
outlining its current and future IT projects.  
 
Criteria 
 
Governments should have an IT strategic plan detailing current and planned technology projects. A well-
developed IT strategic plan will help the Authority in budget planning and ensure that the Authority’s 
technology sustains and assists the entity in achieving its long-term goals. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Authority include an evaluation of IT plans and priorities in their discussion of the 
budget each year.  
 
Management Response 
 
The Authority has brought on board a part-time IT Specialist. The Authority will work with the IT Specialist 
on the development of an IT Strategic Plan. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
See reissuance of recommendation at AUC-2023-01. 

7b Attachment 3



 

9 

AUC-2022-03: Capitalization Policy 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of procedures over capital assets, we reviewed a tools and equipment inventory listing 
of expenses which were not being reviewed for eligibility of being capitalized. We noticed the tools and 
equipment inventory list has not been updated or reviewed consistently and no regular inventory was 
being performed as the items were expensed.   
 
Criteria 
 
Assets with a life expectancy of more than one year or that will extend the useful life of other equipment 
should be capitalized and depreciated, to allocate the expense across the years of use and benefit 
associated with such asset.  While the policy in place is appropriate, there does not appear to be any 
formal procedures implemented to ensure all assets in use are being captured. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Authority create a formal capitalization policy to ensure capitalization of tools and 
equipment are also included.  We also recommend an actual inventory count of capital assets to be 
performed on a biennial basis to ensure obsolete assets are removed and assets in use are accounted 
for timely. 
 
Management Response 
 
The Authority will create a formal capitalization policy which will include the process for an actual 
inventory count of capital assets to be performed on a biennial basis to ensure obsolete assets are 
removed and assets in use are accounted for timely. The Authority plans to begin identifying and 
removing obsolete assets in fiscal year 2023. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
See reissuance of recommendation at AUC-2023-02. 
 
 
AUC-2022-04: Inventory Reconciliation 
 
Condition 
 
During our review of new inventory procedures, we noted there was no monthly reconciliation being 
performed between the inventory valuation and the inventory recorded in the general ledger. The year-
end reconciliation adjustment resulted in a $87,790 decrease of inventory. 
 
Criteria 
 
Government Accounting Standards requires entities to establish adequate controls over inventory counts 
for accurate financial reporting of inventory balances. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Authority create a formal inventory reconciliation procedure or policy to ensure 
there is a reconciliation between the inventory valuation and inventory general ledger.  We also 
recommend the inventory reconciliation is performed on a monthly basis to adequately reconcile 
differences in a timely manner. 
 
Management Response 
 
The Authority will create a formal reconciliation procedure to ensure there is a reconciliation between the 
inventory valuation and inventory general ledger.  This will be performed on a monthly basis. 

7b Attachment 3



 

10 

Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 

7b Attachment 3


	January 24_2024_Board_Agenda
	Tab 1
	5a - December 13 2023 ECCA BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	5c - January 2024 DRAFT marketing report
	Tab 2
	7a MEMO Board Memo Title VI Program 24-26
	7a - RESOLUTION 2024_TitleVI_Board_Resolution
	7a ATTACHMENT2024_TitleVI_Program_Final
	7b - MEMO FY23 Independent Auditors Report Memo
	7b - RESOLUTION FY23 Independent Auditors Report Resolution
	7b ATTACHMENT 1 - ECCTA Financial Statements Final unlocked
	7b ATTACHMENT 2 - ECCTA Single Audit Report Final Unlocked
	7b ATTACHMENT 3 - ECCTA Report to the Board Final unlocked



